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Financial and Operating Highlights

MBEREERE

Result E5

Revenue WA

Profit attributable to RRTHEBA
owners of the Company i3yl

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &A% EAZEF| GE(L)

Interim and proposed final dividends A HA & 72 3% S A% < 2f

per share (HK cents)
Financial Position

Net current assets

Total interest-bearing bank loans

BB GEALD
FAREAR A

mEBEEFME
FHESRTTERER

Key Financial Ratios FEBEER

Gross profit ratio FEAE

Net profit ratio ]2

Return on equity [ ENEIEES

Current ratio BN &

Gearing ratio™ BEAGLEO

Operating Statistics EEHE

Throughput (metric tonnes) B S (AHE)
Nanjing terminal Bt
Ningbo terminal s
Tianjin terminal KIETEER

Jetty utilisation rate® [t el
Nanjing terminal g
Ningbo terminal FRISER
Tianjin terminal RAETEEE

Notes:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000 % Change
FET FHET FE) %
269,104 261,574 2.9
77,118 80,933 4.7)
6.95 7.29 4.7

4.3 5.8 (25.9)
209,427 197,712 5.9
42,500 133,298 (68.1)
53.9% 57.2% (8.9)
32.7% 35.6% (2.9)
8.5% 8.6% (0.1)

4.6 2.2
4.1% 11.0% 6.9)
1,410,500 1,475,500 (4.4)
288,000 278,100 3.6
49,400 146,500 (66.3)
23.9% 23.3% 0.6
65.8% 58.9% 6.9
16.5% 48.8% (82.3)
BiaE

(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the sum of non-
current and current bank loans divided by total assets multiplied
by 100%.

(2)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual actual
throughput via jetties divided by (i) the total annual designed
throughput capacity of jetties for Nanjing terminal and Ningbo
terminal in relation to the operating period; and (ii) the total annual
adjusted designed throughput capacity of the jetty for the Tianjin
terminal in relation to the operating period.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) for the year ended 31 December
2015.

UNCERTAINTY IN ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT BUT WE
HAVE SOLID BUSINESS FOUNDATION

In 2015, GDP growth in China was the slowest among the past 25
years, not only the “target to 7” cannot be reached, GDP growth
during the whole year has only risen by 6.9% to RMB67,670.8
billion, which was the first time to drop below the 7% level since
1990. Overall economic leading indicators and index in China have
declined since 2014, real estate inventory level was still high, this led
to the continued decline in investment in the manufacturing industry,
together with reasons such as high debt ratio of enterprises,
deleveraging and the continue negative growth of PPI, the operation
of PRC enterprises will be more difficult this year. However, under the
complex international situation and increasing economic downward
pressure, the performance of Dragon Crown was still outstanding
as compared with other peer companies, which showed the solid
foundation of the business of the Group.

On the other hand, benefited from the decrease in crude oil price,
the price of chemical products decreased, the chemical industry also
exhibited growth. The added value of industrial enterprises above
designated size in China during 2015, calculated by comparable
prices, grew significantly by 6.1% as compared with last year,
information chemical manufacturing industry grew by 10.6%, the
upgrade was obvious, the stable operation environment led to the
healthy business growth of Dragon Crown.

Dragon Crown recorded revenue of HK$269.1 million (2014:
HK$261.6 million) and net profit of HK$88.1 million (2014: HK$93.2
million) as at the financial year ended 31 December 2015. The net
profit decline was mainly due to the construction of the second
Cryogenic Ethylene tank in Nanjing which was completed and
started operation at the end of 2014, resulted in the fixed assets
depreciation increased in 2015. Also, the depreciation of RMB during
the year also has a negative effect to the net profit of Dragon Crown.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHRE

Contributions from our visionary management team have been
essential in maintaining the Group’s healthy operation. Having
established a solid business foundation over the years, we were able
to leverage our position as a leading liquid chemical storage and
integrated terminal service provider to sustain ties with world-class
chemical enterprises, such as Celanese Corporation. The income
secured from such ties was in itself sufficient to ensure satisfactory
financial results for the year. Given that the liquid chemicals handled
by the Group are applicable to various daily consumer products on
the markets, hence demand will grow continuously from players in
the plastics, paints, textiles and solvents industries.

Given that Shandong’s economic growth has been consistently
ranked in the top three in the PRC, Shandong is bound to benefit
the most from central government’s recent reform driven economic
master plan that is set to deregulate crude oil import and oil
product export markets. Therefore, the Group entered into the
Equity Purchase Agreement in relation to the acquisition of 50%
equity interest in Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd. at
the beginning of 2016, so as to grasp the excellent development
prospect of Weifang Liquid Terminal. Weifang Liquid Terminal is the
highest safety requirements and a state-of-the-art terminal project
that is dedicated to develop for bulk oil and chemicals storage and
distribution business. It is located at a gateway to North-eastern
Asian economic powerhouses such as Japan and South Korea
and a strategic interchange between Bohai Economic Basin and
Yangtze Economic Basin. The acquisition of Weifang Liquid Terminal
can consolidate the leading position of Dragon Crown in the China
liquefaction industry.

In the future, facing severe challenges and a slowing global
economy, and together with reason such as domestic overcapacity
in China, China’s economic growth will continue to face a great
downward pressure. However, the performance of the Group is still
outstanding and stable as compared with other peer companies. We
will continue to monitor closely the cash flows, to ensure the Group
has sufficient liquidity, so as to maintain a stable financial position.
Therefore, we have sufficient funding to support the sustainable
development of the Group.
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DIVIDENDS

Although global and Hong Kong economy recessed during
the second half of 2015, in recognition of the support of our
shareholders, the Group sticks to the dividend policy as before,
an interim dividend of HK2.0 cents (2014: HK2.0 cents) per share
was declared and paid during the year. In addition, the Board has
proposed a final dividend of HK2.3 cents (2014: HK3.8 cents) per
share. The total dividends per share in 2015 was HK4.3 cents,
which represents 61.9% of the profit attributable to shareholders for
the year. The dividend payout ratio is consistent with the Group’s
dividend policy and has kept on maintaining the dividend payout ratio
exceeding 50% since listing.

SAFETY

The Group pays high attention to the safety of chemicals terminal
and storage. During the year, serious explosion incident of
dangerous goods warehouse of Tianjin Port Ruihai Company took
place. Although the Group has business operated in Tanggu New
District, Tianjin, the amount of investment and the scale of business
in Tianjin is comparatively small, therefore the effect to the Group is
small, even though the warehouse still has not resumed operation
until now. Employee safety has been our top priority for many years,
therefore, all chemical terminals and storages of the Group have to
be approved by the relevant monitoring department of government.
Also, we provide regular training to all of our staff members, as well
as develop and implement HSE (Health, Safety and Environment)
policies in accordance with national and industry standards. In the
future, we intend to seek further improvements in this area, with the
ultimate goal of providing safe and quality services to our customers.

EXPANDING MARKET OFFERS PROMISING OUTLOOK

Facing each kind of uncertainty and challenge of external economy,
in particular under weak economic recovery and limited policy
support measures, we have to consider all kind of reason and
challenge.

Despite the challenging economic environment, we are optimistic
about the prospects for the liquid chemical industry. With support
from an expanding consumer market for basic chemical materials
and chemical products in China, we believe that demand for our
services will continue to grow, and we are ready to satisfy such
growth.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHRE

With our world-class expertise and excellent facilities and services,
we have built a strong reputation and earned the trust of our
customers, which include renowned large-scale multinational
chemical enterprises. Capitalizing on the global trend for outsourcing
logistics arrangements, we see the opportunity to introduce new
cost-effective solutions that enable our customers to reduce costs,
increase flexibility and raise efficiencies as a whole.

The Group’s flagship operation, which is located in the Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park, the Nanjing terminal, has contributed a
stable and high profit to the Group for a continuous period, Phase
[l of the Nanjing terminal has achieved operation for the entire
year in 2014 for the first time, while the construction of the second
Cryogenic Ethylene tank was completed and started operation at
the end of 2014, and has contributed additional profit to the Group
as we anticipated. Besides, the Group entered into the Equity
Purchase Agreement in relation to acquisition of 50% equity interest
in Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd. at the beginning
of 2016. With the obvious logistic advantage of Weifang Port and
facilitation of Shandong government in terms of policy, we expect
that the construction of the first phase of Weifang Liquid Terminal
will be completed and come into operation at the first quarter of
2017. We expect that it can contribute profit to the Group. It will
help Dragon Crown to capture the opportunities in the China liquid
chemical industry, as well as strengthening the leading position of the
Group, improving the profitability of terminals and creating a valuable
investment opportunity for shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our colleagues
who dedicated their duties diligently during 2015 and assist Dragon
Crown to go ahead in the future. | would also like to express my
sincere gratitude to all of our business partners, customers and
shareholders for their continuous support. Going forward, we will
strive to deliver sustainable growth and generate maximum value
for our shareholders. While doing so, we will keep pace with the
times and create brilliant achievements, we trust that the Group will
continue to receive the unwavering support of all our stakeholders.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG, Wai Man, aged 59, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company. Mr. NG is the founder of our Group
and is principally responsible for operation of our Board and is the
key decision-maker of our Group. He is responsible for formulating
the overall business strategic development for our Group. Mr. NG
has accumulated around 27 years of management and operation
experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products
industry. Mr. NG is the founder of Dragon Source Industrial Limited
and its invested entity, Ningbo Haixiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (the predecessor of Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and has managed its operation since 1988.
Mr. NG was the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon
Crown Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd from April 2004 to 2007
responsible for overseeing strategic development and management
of resources. From December 1993 to September 2004, Mr. NG
was a director of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co., Ltd, a company
which provides inspection, certification and testing services. He
served as the chairman and general manager from October 1997
to October 2006 and legal representative from October 1997 to
October 2007 for Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon Crown Chemical
International Trade Company Ltd., a trading company, responsible
for strategic business management. Mr. NG was appointed as our
Director on 16 July 2010 and was re-designated as our executive
Director on 30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAE

Mr. TING Yian Ann, aged 55, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. TING is principally responsible
for overall management and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with our key customers. Mr. TING
joined our Group in 2003. Since 2007, Mr. TING has served as
the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon Crown
Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. He has accumulated around
27 years of management and operation experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. TING was president and chief executive officer from 1997
to 2001 of GATX (Jurong) Terminals Pte Ltd., a company providing
global networks in bulk liquid storage, packaging, distribution and
logistic services in Singapore. His major duties at GATX (Jurong)
Terminals Pte Ltd. covered overall planning and operation of the
company in the region, formulating strategies, cultivating relationship
with customers and authorities and developing internal controls
system. Mr. TING was the deputy chairman of the Singapore
Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001 and also served as
the chairman of the Logistics & Distribution Committee established
under the Singapore Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001.
Mr. TING graduated from University of Southern California in 1985
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration. Mr.
TING was appointed as an executive Director on 30 November
2010.

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, aged 54, is an executive Director. Mr.
CHONG joined our Group in 1994. Mr. CHONG is principally
responsible for business and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with major customers. He has
accumulated around 21 years of experience in the liquid chemical
products terminal and storage industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited, an
international conglomerate engaging in various businesses, including
worldwide logistics and financing, development of infrastructure, for
over seven years. He was in the chemicals division and undertook
business support centered around petrochemical products chain
for logistics and distribution. He was also responsible for developing
strategic partnerships and customer relations. Mr. CHONG
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with
a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr. CHONG was
appointed as an executive Director on 30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, aged 50, is an executive Director. Ms.
CHAN s responsible for our Group’s day-to-day management,
administration as well as human resources management. She joined
our Group in 1988. Ms. CHAN has accumulated around 27 years of
management and operation experience in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
CHAN worked for Wai Hing Company, a trading company, from
November 1986 to July 1988 responsible for arrangements in trading
of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Shijie, aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LUQ is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. He was deputy factory director of SINOPEC
Sichuan Vinylon Works from 1988 to 1996. Mr. LUO was deputy
general manager of SINOPEC Sales Company from 1996 to 1999,
deputy director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2000 to
2003, and director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2003
to 2006. From 2005 to 2006, he also was general manager of
SINOPEC Chemical Products Sales Company. Mr. LUO graduated
from Tianjin University in 1968, majored in Precision Instrument.
He obtained the qualification as an engineer from Chongqging City
Government in 1981. He was appointed as senior engineer by
SINOPEC in 1987.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAE

Mr. ZHU Wujun, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010, Mr. ZHU is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. ZHU was the deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company from 1985 to 1998. From
1998 to 2005, Mr. ZHU was a director and deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Ltd. From 2005 to 2006,
Mr.ZHU was the deputy manager of Sinopec Chemical Products
Sales Company. Mr. ZHU was also the chairman of Yangyang
Chemical logistics and Trading Company from 1995 to 2005. Mr.
ZHU graduated from Zhejiang University in 1970 with a bachelor
degree. He has obtained the qualification as a senior economist from
the assessment committee of China Petrochemical Company which
assessed his qualification according to standards set by the State
Council in 1995.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LAU is also chairman
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served as the financial controller of
a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board over 3 years and had worked with PricewaterhouseCoppers
for over 5 years. Mr. LAU served as non-executive director of ZMFY
Automobile Glass Services Limited, a company listed on the GEM
Board from September 2013 to December 2014. Mr. LAU graduated
from Oregon State University with a bachelor degree of science in
Business Administration in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board, since April 2003. Mr. LAU has served as an independent
non-executive director of China Qinfa Group Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board since June 2009. Mr. Lau has also served as an
independent non-executive director of SDM Group Holdings Limited,
a company Listed on the GEM Board, since September 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Lai Chi, aged 43, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of our Group. Mr. LAU has joined our Group since August
2015. Mr. LAU graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors) in Business Administration
(Professional Accountancy). Mr. LAU is a fellow member of both of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. LAU had about 5 years working experience in an
international firm of certified public accountants and about 15 years
of experience in key financial position in Hong Kong listed companies
and multi-national companies. Mr. LAU has extensive experience
within the area of auditing, accounting and financial management,
taxation, corporate and project finance and management.

Mr. ZOU Qing Long, aged 51, is a director and general manager
of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. ZOU has joined our Group since May
2004. Mr. ZOU is principally responsible for our Group’s overall
operational management in Nanjing. Mr. ZOU has accumulated
around 13 years of management and operation experience in
the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry
Mr. Zou’s major responsibility with the Group includes managing
and coordinating operation workflow, recruitment and training of
managers under his supervision, developing guidelines of operation
and maintenance. He is overseeing operations in our terminals in
Nanjing, Ningbo and Tianjin. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in the China Maritime Safety Administration for 16 years in which he
gained valuable maritime logistics experience. Mr. ZOU graduated
from Nanjing Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army with a bachelor degree in Economics Management in 2003.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 58, is the deputy general
manager of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. LAU is principally
responsible for our Group’s business and new project development
of petrochemical terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated
around 27 years of management and operation experience in the
terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU
was an engineer of ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988
to 2004 and he assumed management roles in HSE, logistics,
operations and maintenance. Mr. LAU graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering
in 1979. Mr. LAU was elected as a Graduate of the Institution of
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEAE

Engineers, Australia on 10 January 1985 and has been included in
the list of competent persons for Class 2-inspection and certification
of LPG compound and cylinder stores by Electrical & Mechanical
Services Department, Government of Hong Kong since 6 November
1996. He joined our Group in April 2005 as a project manager.

Mr. LI Hongtao, aged 44, is the general manager of Tianjin
Tianlong. LI is principally responsible for our Group’s overall
operational management in Tianjin including managing and
coordinating workflow, setting up annual budget and fiscal plan,
providing training and recruitment of managers. Mr. LI has joined our
Group since 2001, principally responsible for business development
and communication with customers. Mr. LI has accumulated around
16 years of experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical
products. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. LI was a manager of
regional development and marketing department of GATX (Jurong)
Teminals Pte Ltd, a company providing global networks in bulk liquid
storage, packaging, distribution and logistic services in Singapore.
Mr. LI graduated from Saint-Petersburg State Academy of Culture in
Russia with academic certifications equivalent to master in Cultural
Studies in 1998.

Mr. XIANG Xiao Chu, aged 60, is the general manager of Ningbo
Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group
since November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 23 years of management and operation
experience of which around 20 years are in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division deputy chief of
Human Resource and Security and an office administrator in Ningbo
No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang Province from February
1988 to October 1992. During the period from November 1992
to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an office administrator
handling selection and recruitment of new staff, finance management
and observing compliance of HSE policies of Zhejiang Chemicals
Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has served as a deputy
director and director of tank field, business manager and general
manager assistant in Ningbo Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang since
October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed administration management
course of Self-Study Examination of the Higher Education of Zhejiang
Province in October 1990.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service providers
that specialized in the handling and storage of liquid chemical
products, operating a total of three terminals that are located in
Nanjing, Tianjin and Ningbo. Strategically situated in one of the major
petrochemical industry hubs of China, the Group has set up jetties
and tank farms (“Terminals”) along the coastal area to seize rising
demand from the petroleum and chemical industries. Dragon Crown
offers a high quality and comprehensive range of liquid chemical
terminal and storage services to customers through its own jetties,
storage tanks and dedicated pipelines.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the throughput volume of
liquid chemical products handled by the Group’s Nanjing, Tianjin and
Ningbo terminals reached 1,410,500 metric tonnes, 49,400 metric
tonnes and 288,000 metric tonnes respectively (2014: 1,475,500
metric tonnes, 146,500 metric tonnes and 278,100 metric tonnes
respectively), with a combined throughput volume of 1,747,900
metric tonnes (2014: 1,900,100 metric tonnes).

The following table provides an overview of the existing terminals and
facilities as at 31 December 2015:

EEENWED T

EHEIE

EARTE —HKEALNGEABERSHE
i EEEIRNERERETRE ﬂi%uu ’
EER REREREE=(AWHE - KK
MR R EPREFELMETTENR
S AEBCDERSEEY TIHER
R ([T ) AEEAME TITE B mig
ROFR - EAFBHEEEBE  FREK
EHEERTEFIRESmE AR E
L2 mFETF RI5EART o

REZE2015F12 A31 HILFE - AEER
R RENEFHERENRELCLESR
BAHE5 541,410,500 208 + 49,400 A WA
%2288,000AWA (20144F : 1,475,500 AW
146,500 AMA & 278,100 AH8) » AL E
1,747,9002ME (20144 : 1,900,100 2H8) °

THRE2EVA2015FE12 A31 A AEER
RHEEE

Existing Terminals and facilities Nanjing Ningbo Tianjin Total
BERERR MR BR P st
Number of tanks S 32 12 15 59
Storage capacity (m?) FRAZE (LK) 210,000 29,000 24,900 263,900
Number of berth ARz E 3 1 1 5
Berthing capacity (dwt) SARIaE ) (BERE) 45,000* 3,000 3,000
Jetty designed throughput capacity BHEE AL E

(metric tonnes) (AE) 4,000,000 100,000 300,000 4,400,000

* Comprises three berths with capacity of 20,000 dwt, 20,000 dwt
and 5,000 dwt, respectively.

The main source of the Group’s revenue and profit is derived from
its flagship terminal, situated in the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park,
accounting for 97.2% (2014: 94.2%) of the total profit during the
year. The Group’s major customer, Celanese Corporation (NYSE:
CE) — a world leading producer of acetyl products — also situated
in the same industrial park, contributed HK$233.5 million (2014:
HK$248.5 million) in revenue to the Group, which is equivalent to
86.8% (2014: 95.0%) of the total revenue during the year.

* B={&%5IA20,000% EME - 20,000 EME
1% 5,000 2 EMEHARL AR ©

REEEBEHBBECAEAMEETER A
FERARBFRIR - (B ARNFE R BT
97.2% (20144F : 94.2%) - NEBH T E
BEENEH (BOBFHFR BT : CE) Attt
REAENIBEREER  TURZIE
F RAFERAREBRERIURA 2.335 E7H
TC(20144F : 2.4858%70) » FEERAIRA
7 86.8% (2014 4 : 95.0%) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWED T

The Group’s second cryogenic ethylene tank was completed and
commenced operation at the end of 2014. The 20,000 ms tank,
which requires not only specific expertise to construct but also to
maintain and operate, allows for the storage of deep cooled liquids
at -104°Celsius.

Dragon Crown is in a strong financial position, with total assets of
HK$1,039.9 million (2014: HK$1,216.4 million) and total equity of
HK$962.4 million (2014: HK$1,005.0 million). The Group has cash
on hand of HK$211.2 million (2014: HK$322.6 million) and a healthy
gearing ratio of 4.1% (2014: 11.0%).

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Although growth of China’s economy will further slow down and
the domestic demand will continue to decrease in 2016, benefited
from the decrease in international commodity price, the Group
remains optimistic about the future outlook of the chemical storage
and logistics industry. Such optimism is based on the Group’s
ability to leverage on a successful business model, and ongoing
enhancement of its infrastructure to facilitate future growth initiatives.

Long-term terminal service contracts of Nanjing Terminal Phase |lI
have been secured and the Group will continue to capitalize on this
new facility to spur business growth.

The second cryogenic ethylene tank has commenced operation at
the end of 2014. It will help Dragon Crown further capture demand
from an expanding consumer market for basic chemical materials
and chemical products in China. The second cryogenic tank has
provided full contributions in 2015.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Enhancing Dragon Crown’s leading position in the coastal regions
of China, particularly along the Yangtze River Delta and Bohai Bay
regions, has always been its main business objective. Consistent
with this goal, the Group will actively explore existing and new
business opportunities alongside strengthening its existing
infrastructure, therefore the Group entered into the Equity Purchase
Agreement in relation to acquisition of 50% equity interest in Weifang
Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd. at the beginning of 2016.
With the obvious logistic advantage of Weifang Port and facilitation
of Shandong government in terms of policy, we expect that the
construction of the first phase of Weifang Liquid Terminal will be
completed and come into operation at the first quarter of 2017. And
we expect that it can contribute profit to the Group, and create a
valuable investment opportunity for shareholders.

With advanced operations and a highly experienced management
team at the helm, Dragon Crown is set to consolidate its leading
position as an integrated terminal service provider in China. As it
continues to grow, the Group will remain committed to achieving
more positive financial results and delivering greater value to its
shareholders.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of the Group
increased by 2.9% from HK$261.6 million in 2014 to HK$269.1
million. The increase was mainly due to the combined effects of the
increase in revenue from ethylene, methanol and acetic acid and
counteract the depreciation of Renminbi during the year.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2015, gross profit decreased by
2.9% from HK$149.5 million in 2014 to HK$145.1 million. The gross
profit ratio decreased slightly by 3.3% to 53.9%. The decrease
was attributable to the increase in the cost of services provided,
which was mainly due to the net effect of the increase in fixed
assets depreciation, repair and maintenance, and electricity fee and
decrease in total cost of diesel fuel.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED T

Other income

Other income increased to HK$11.9 million from HK$8.4 million in
2014, which was mainly due to the net effects of decrease of bank
interest income and compensation for delay of construction work
received from a contractor.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased slightly by 3.6% from HK$45.4
million in 2014 to HK$47.1 million. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in staff costs and legal and professional
fees.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year decreased to HK$1.7 million from HK$4.4
million in 2014 which is because the Group repaid certain loans
during the year.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associate

The share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associate
decreased to HK$2.8 million from HK$6.0 million in 2014,

Tax expense

The tax expense for the year increased to HK$23.0 million from
HK$20.9 million in 2014. The increase was mainly due to the
receiving of delay compensation from a construction contractor
which cannot enjoy the benefit of half deduction in PRC Enterprise
Income Tax. In addition, withholding tax expense for the year due
to the declared of dividends from our PRC Group companies also
increased.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fee and other related
expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares in 2011.

These net proceeds were applied up to the year ended 31 December
2015 in accordance with the proposed applications set out in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Company'’s prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and
the announcement dated 6 February 2013 headed “Change of use
of proceeds”, as follows:

Construction of second cryogenic RS 2 EER
ethylene tank LG

Construction of our third jetty SRR EE 3 RN

Construction of our dedicated railway system — EREFEKEZ5

Construction of nine general purpose BFRoE—MR AR
storage tanks oy

General working capital —MEEES

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits
or time deposits with banks in Hong Kong and Nanjing as at 31
December 2015.

EEE WD T

IHFRARRBEZAE

AEEBARRFBRMHPR2011F FTHESE
HheHEERAREMBEERZ 2FER
THREEA) 2.811 BT o

RIEAATHEA2011 45 530 H 2 B
ER((HBRER]) [ RRAERAEHRIER
w|—8MBEEA22013F2A6BEA &
RESFIERR | 2 AHTEzEZ2EAR
ZEMSHIEFEEZ=2015F12A31H1E
FEERWNT :

Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FEREFE(EEET)

Available Utilised Unutilised
AEA E2EA KRENA
133.1 133.1 -
46.6 46.6 -
40.0 - 40.0
33.3 33.3 -
28.1 28.1 -
281.1 2411 40.0

R2015F12 831 H » AEBBAREBAE
FIEFRENEHTERSREPHFERERETER
BBEMERZRIT °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED T

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total bank loans amounted to
HK$42.5 million (2014: HK$133.3 million), all are Hong Kong dollar
bank loans (2014: included RMB bank loans of RMB50.0 million).
The Group’s gearing ratio (total bank loans to total assets) was 4.1%
at 31 December 2015 (2014: 11.0%). The gearing structure was as
follows:

Total bank loans RITERMRE
Total assets BERE
Gearing ratio BEAGHEE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$267.8 million (2014: HK$361.5 million)
and HK$58.4 million (2014: HK$163.8 million), respectively. As at 31
December 2015, the Group’s current ratio increased to 4.6 (2014:
2.2).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and adopts

a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy capital ratio
and support its business expansion requirements.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans is set out below:

EEENWED T

REEHRMER

AEBRITEROESPEREINMT -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET

Repayable: fEEFRIA
Within one year 1FER 28,333 90,798
In the second year Fo4F 14,167 28,333
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEIESF(RIEERMT) - 14,167
42,500 133,298

Note: All bank loans at 31 December 2015 are denominated in HK$.

PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2015 are set out in note
24 to the financial statement.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in
RMB and HK$. Its operating cash inflows and outflows were primarily
denominated in RMB and HK$. During the year, the Group did not
have any material foreign exchange exposure and had not used any
financial instruments for hedging purpose.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 228 full
time employees (2014: 244). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the PRC.
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EEEFNWED T

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 12 February 2015, Dragon Crown Petrochemicals Terminal
(Holdings) Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Dragon
Crown, entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement with Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park Company Limited, in relation to the
acquisition of 1.4% equity interest in Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid
Chemical Terminal Company Limited (“Nanjing Dragon Crown”)
at a consideration of RMB7.75 million. Nanjing Dragon Crown is
engaged in the operation of liquid chemicals terminal and storage
business in Nanjing with the business scope of the operation
of terminal and other terminal facilities, operation of loading,
unloading, transportation, storage of goods within the Nanjing
Chemical Industry Park. For details of acquisition, please refer to
the announcements of the Group dated 2 February 2015 and 12
February 2015.

After the year end day, on 28 January 2016, Overseas Hong Kong
Investment Limited (“OHKIL”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into the Equity Purchase Agreement with
Sime Darby Overseas (HK) Limited (*SDOHK”) and Weifang Sime
Darby Port Co. Ltd. (“WSDP”) for the acquisition of 50% equity
interest in Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Weifang
Sime Darby”), for a consideration of RMB60.85 million. Weifang Sime
Darby is principally engaged in the construction, management and
operation of Weifang Liquid Terminal at Weifang Port. For details of
acquisition, please refer to the announcement of the Group dated 28
January 2016.

On the same date, OHKIL and SDOHK have also entered into a
Shareholders’ Agreement for the management and administration of
the affairs of Weifang Sime Darby and Weifang Liquid Terminal. Both
parties will contribute RMB110.00 million to the registered capital
of Weifang Sime Darby in equal shares within 30 days after the
issuance of the new business license of Weifang Sime Darby. OHKIL
further agreed that to provide shareholder loans to Weifang Sime
Darby within 60 days after the issuance of the new business license
of Weifang Sime Darby in an amount of RMB100 million. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Group dated 28 January
2016.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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THE BOARD
BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4 executive
directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board comprises the following directors:
Executive directors:

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. LUO Shijie
Mr. ZHU Wujun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and
set out in writing.
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Corporate Governance Report

Currently, the Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice whereas the Chief Executive
Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors representing one-
third of the Board with at least one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all independent non-executive directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, APPOINTMENT AND RE-
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
Board composition, monitoring the appointment of directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
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appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company is
appointed for a specific term of one year and is subject to retirement
by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Ting
Yian Ann, Mr. Chong Yat Chin and Mr. Lau Sik Yuen shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.
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All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Continuing briefing and professional development for directors will
be arranged where necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the following directors

attended training session arranged by professional institution:

Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

Mr. CHONG Yat
Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan
Ming

Independent
Non-Executive
Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Topic

Internal Control overview and updates
under the Listing Rule’s requirement, ESG
reporting overview for preparation and
Listed company fundraising method

Internal Control overview and updates
under the Listing Rule’s requirement, ESG
reporting overview for preparation and
Listed company fundraising method

Internal Control overview and updates
under the Listing Rule’s requirement, ESG
reporting overview for preparation and
Listed company fundraising method

Internal Control overview and updates
under the Listing Rule’s requirement, ESG
reporting overview for preparation and
Listed company fundraising method

Internal Control overview and updates
under the Listing Rule’s requirement, ESG
reporting overview for preparation and
Listed company fundraising method

Internal Control overview and updates
under the Listing Rule’s requirement, ESG
reporting overview for preparation and
Listed company fundraising method

Internal Control overview and updates
under the Listing Rule’s requirement, ESG
reporting overview for preparation and
Listed company fundraising method

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory

update/seminar handouts have been provided to the directors for

their reference and studying.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 139.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely, Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skKills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for
election at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of all directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year under
review to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of all directors and senior management and
other related matters.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie
and Mr. ZHU Wujun, including one independent non-executive
director with the appropriate professional qualifications. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditors
before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year under
review to review interim and annual financial results and reports
and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions
and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the executive directors.

The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in the table
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below:

Nomination
Name of Director Board Committee
EEpA Exg REZE®
Mr. Ng Wai Man 6/6 11
RERFESE
Mr. Ting Yian Ann 6/6 11
BREREE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin 6/6 -
HEELE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming 6/6 -
BR=Brt
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 6/6 11
BHREE
Mr. Luo Shijie 6/6 11
SRt FEL A
Mr. Zhu Wujun 5/6 11
RABRE
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of executive directors during the year.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 52 to 53.

Where appropriate, a statement will be submitted by the Audit
Committee explaining its recommendation regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors and the
reasons why the Board has taken a different view from that of the
Audit Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young,

in respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below:

Service Category

EXSREARBLETRAUREMEER
EHFERTFHERE  REFBEHR
R EMEEEERHABTQLE BFHS
B2 AFE -

BEEECHESSRELEZHARER
UEEEGHARAZMBHRREDRAGT
AHd  AHREEEHE -

EEVTABEMEATEERES LA
B ARRIIFEL LN ERE AR
EFBR -

ARRB LB B RBEERIEREA
EIEZRREEZBRAFNES2ELIA L
B ZBENRER o

HERBRLT  BERZBERERIEH
FREUE - RAE - BHR R RIS X EEDR
MEZZ - AREFEUFITRAERZ

S R 4z B BT 2 % B AT F M
REZE2015F 12 A31 HILFE - S8R
B RIEZBREE N, EA T AR T INE

BN K Gt BN BT FrENE ST

Fees Paid/Payable (HK$)

BR %351 et EAER (BT
Audit Services %R
— Annual audit —FEEZ 1,150,000
- Independent auditors letter on continuing —ERBEER 8
connected transactions Y8 7 A% EEM R 5 43,000
Non-audit Services IERZERTE
— Review of interim results —EHPHEIESE 385,000
— Taxation services — ISR 108,500
1,686,500
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an annual basis through
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the
Group.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholder(s) held at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
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Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be called for the transaction of any
business specified in the written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

There are no statutory provisions granting the right to shareholders
to put forward or move new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Fax: 2587 1338

Email: myfarm@dragoncrown.com

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

o
p=l113

ZEEHRARNESTEHRARAMNE

RIXMEMERPEANEANEHEH
AANEZZEREMIMEARET  fHiE

ER-_T-HAREFEREEHAZARE
E'J}E%Eﬁ AT ARFEIED SAEH &R

ERRATHEFTERBAFAKREM
éﬁéi%i%%mﬁﬂﬂﬁgﬁAﬁﬁ
Bt o

RERXE LRHMEE

MERBERRERARFHEMEIZMAA
T UYEAMBRRNBERASE TRORE
NRENBBIIRBRADVEEMRX - BE
BEORFR Z R AT R TE LR e B3k
ARBARBRAR -

MEFEFHER

ERAARAEFSERTAER KR
AR EEERBEEAEARF -

et : ADBEBETEREOERELNEN o

iS5
BERAEBAT A BEEE AR BN
bz1251| BB
VEEE R
SRESHAKXE
1813
(EABESS DNEIME)
B 2587 1338

BT myfarm@dragoncrown.com



Corporate Governance Report

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, except for
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee, are available to answer questions at shareholder
meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 54 to 57.

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents (2014: HK2.0 cents) per share
was paid on 25 September 2015.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.3 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on Friday, 27 May 2016. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development and the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 13 to 20. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Year Financial
Summary on page 138. The summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements. No important event affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the financial year under review.

The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability.
Being an integrated service provider that specialized in the handling
and storage of liquid chemical products in the PRC, the Group is
subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by the
PRC national, provincial and municipal governments. These include
regulations on air and noise pollutions and chemical storage.

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

The Group recognizes that our employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to our sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with
our employees, providing quality services to our customers and
enhancing cooperation with our business partners.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2015 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$604.6 million (2014
HK$539.7 million), of which HK$25.5 million has been proposed
as a final dividend for the year. In accordance with Section 34 of
the Companies Law, dividend may be paid out of the amount of
HK$431.5 million (2014: HK$431.5 million) of the Company’s share
premium account subject to a solvency test and the provisions of the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 93.0% and 38.1% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 40.1% and
11.2% of the total cost of services for the year.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial
interests in the Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to
above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Yian Ann (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Chong Yat Chin

Ms. Chan Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen

Mr. Luo Shijie

Mr. Zhu Wujun

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Ting Yian Ann, Mr. Chong Yat Chin and Mr. Lau Sik Yuen are
subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the date
of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Ting Yian Ann and Mr. Chong Yat Chin have entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
commenced on 1 December 2010. Mr. Ting and Mr. Chong have
entered into a renewal contract with the Company on 2 April 2014
for a term of three years effective from 1 December 2013 and will
continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until terminated
by not less than three months’ written notice.

Mr. Lau Sik Yuen has renewed service contracts with the
Company for a term of one year effective from 1 December 2011
and will continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until
terminated by not less than one month’s written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the director
is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of his or her duties. To the extent provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the directors.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against directors of companies in the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 33 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Interests in the shares of the Company

Personal
Name of directors Interests
2] BARS
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) RERFAE(TREE]) 2,152,000
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (‘Mr. TING") BB R &4 (TR%E4]) -
Mr. Chong Yat Chin (‘Mr. CHONG") 3 HE &£ ([H44£]) 762,000
Ms. Chan Wan Ming (‘Ms. CHAN") RREIS4%+ ([t ]) 184,000
Notes:
1. All interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were

long positions.

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of

Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure
Port”) and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of
767,806,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port.
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767,806,000 769,958,000 69.39%
33,380,0009 33,380,000 3.00%
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- 184,000 0.02%
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3. Mr. TING was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of
Ansen International Limited (“Ansen”) and therefore was deemed to
be interested in 33,380,000 shares of the Company held by Ansen.

4. Mr. CHONG was the beneficial owner of all issued share capital of
Silver Coin International Limited (“Silver Coin”) and therefore was
deemed to be interested in 15,950,000 shares of the Company

held by Silver Coin.

(i)  Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the

Company

Name of directors

BEEHR

Mr. NG
REE
Mr. NG
REE
Mr. TING
PR A

Mr. CHONG
et

Name of
associated
corporation

HHEBEE &

Lirun

AN

Sure Port
B

Ansen

Silver Coin

Capacity

&5

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Beneficial owner
EnEEA

Beneficial owner
EnlEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the

directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or

short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company or any of its associated corporations.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL FERFRZEESRNKE
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, so far as was known to the directors of MR2015F 12 4318 » AARRRIESFTA -

the Company, the following persons or corporations (other than T AL E(WIERRBEEHEET
directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests and BAB)RERNRZ DSBS
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as EARCERMBIEE 5 M HAE 14158 336 1678 T
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the GEazEZRMBREARRR 2wk

SFO or as otherwise naotified to the Company were as follows: B
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shares existing issued
or underlying shares share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity held in the Company of the Company
RARA B R G HERATREE R
MR A g4 HMEERGHE TREBNE DL
Lirun Beneficial owner @ 751,306,000 67.71%
717 BEmEaAC
Mr. Ng Dan Ching Beneficial owner 91,200,000 8.22%
RNEERE and interest of
controlled corporation®
BREEAK

FAEERO

Notes: PisE

1. All interests of the substantial shareholders in the shares of the 1. EERFERARARG ZFB#ERE R
Company were long position. B

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital 2. REEDNNEEHCBRTRAZEESR
of Lirun and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of A AR AR DBEREARR AR
751,306,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun. 751,306,000 A A&7 AR HE B e ©

3. Mr. Ng Dan Ching personally held 68,808,000 shares of the 3. RAEFAEREARE AT 68,808,000 ik

Company and was the beneficial owner of 50% issued share capital 0 WRHEEBHEEE(BB)BRAT([4
of Wai Tat Industrial Group (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Wai E])50% BEITRAZERER A - BULH
Tat”) and therefore was deemed to be interested in 22,392,000 AR BEERE 2 A 522,392,000 A% A%
shares of the Company held by Wai Tat. DA ER -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors of
the Company were not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long
term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract and
retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2015.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed on the confirmations from the Covenantors
and concluded that the Deed has been complied with and has been
effectively enforced.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group conducted the following non-exempt continuing

connected transactions during the year.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction

amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2015:

Connected transactions
BERS

(A

Ningbo Storage Agreements

HEBRERRE

Pipe Racks Agreements
() Pipe Racks Services
Agreements

ERRHHE

(i) - Security Services
Agreement

&R ek

Renewed Office Lease Agreement

BEFHAZEEDS

Connected person

BEAL

Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon
Crown Chemical International

Trade Company Ltd. (“Ningbo DC”)

ERRHEEAC TER
BB A ([E5EA))

ERIE

Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Company Limited
(“Nanjing CIPC")

HREIXEARAR
(TA=CIPCl)

Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Public Services Company
Limited (‘Nanjing CIPPS”)

AREIZERARERER
EERE(TERCPPS])

Dragon Crown Investments Limited
(‘DC Investments’)
EMCIERERAR
(e IER])
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AEBRFRETUATERRIFERER

TREIZFIFRRTFEIZN2016F 2
FELRIERRSE

Annual cap Actual transaction amount
EEIR ERR 58

Approx. Approx.
g e
(RMB'000) (HK$'000) (RMB'000) (HK$'000)
(AR®TTT) (FEn)  (A\RETR) (F&7)
6,120 7,553 5,234 6,459
12,126 14,965 3,767 4,649
763 942 254 313
12,889 15,907 4,021 4,962
1,494 1,494
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Ningbo Storage Agreements

On 3 December 2012, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC
entered into the Ningbo Storage Agreement, pursuant to
which Ningbo Ningxiang agreed to provide Ningbo DC with
terminal and storage services at the Group’s terminal in
Ningbo. The term of the Ningbo Storage Agreement is for the
period of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2015.

On 16 July 2013, pursuant to the Ningbo Storage Agreement,
Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC entered into the Additional
Order for terminal and storage services for Methanol at
the Group’s terminal in Ningbo for the period from 16 July
2013 to 31 December 2015. In addition, three supplemental
agreements (the “Supplemental Agreements”) to the Ningbo
Storage Agreements were entered into between Ningbo
Ningxiang and Ningbo DC effective on 13 November 2013, 28
February 2014 and 13 June 2014, respectively, for terminal
and storage services for Methanol and all Supplemental
Agreements have been terminated on 11 January 2014, 29
March 2014 and 22 July 2014, respectively.

On 30 July 2014, pursuant to the Ningbo Storage Agreement,
Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC entered into a renewed
additional order (the “Renewed Additional Order”, together
with the Ningbo Storage Agreement, the Additional Order, the
Supplemental Agreements, the “Ningbo Storage Agreements”)
for terminal and storage services for Methanol at the Group’s
terminal in Ningbo for the period from 1 August 2014 to 31
December 2015. Pursuant to the Renewed Additional Order,
the Additional Order was terminated with effect from 1 August
2014,
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On 25 January 2016, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo DC
entered into the Renewed Ningbo Storage Agreement,
pursuant to which Ningbo Ningxiang agreed to provide
Ningbo DC with terminal and storage services at the Group’s
terminal in Ningbo. The term of the Renewed Ningbo Storage
Agreement is for the period of three years from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2018.

Ningbo DC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of DC Investments
which in turn is owned as to 98% by Mr. NG, a director and
a controlling shareholder and as to 2% by Mr. CHONG, a
director. It is principally engaged in trading of chemicals.
According to the Listing Rules, Ningbo DC is an associate
of Mr. NG and thus a connected person. As Ningbo DC is
a connected person of the Company, the Ningbo Storage
Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The fees for the services provided are principally determined
by (i) the quantity of the liquid chemical products handled by
Ningbo Ningxiang; and (i) the period for the storage of the
liquid chemical products at the terminal. The price will be
negotiated and agreed between both parties with reference
to the market price and the management will take into
account the price range charged by other service providers
for the same services within the port. This is to ensure that
the terms offered by Ningbo DC to Ningbo Ningxiang are no
less favourable than those offered by other Independent Third
Parties in the ordinary course of business.

Pipe Racks Agreements

The Group entered into the Pipe Racks Services Agreements
and the Security Services Agreement (collectively the “Pipe
Racks Agreements”), which constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules 14A.81 and 14A.82, the transactions under the Pipe
Racks Agreements and the annual cap amounts of the
transactions thereunder have been aggregated.
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In March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPC entered into
a pipe racks services agreement (the “Pipe Racks Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease
to the Group the pipe racks for the Acetic Acid pipelines and
Methanol pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Pipe Racks Services Agreement was supplemented by (i) a
supplemental agreement dated 28 September 2007, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe
racks for the Vinyl Acetate and Acetic Anhydride pipelines
at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park; (i) a supplemental
agreement dated 12 October 2007, pursuant to which Nanjing
CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for the
Ethylene pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park; (iii) a
supplemental agreement dated June 2008, pursuant to which
Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for
the sub-pipelines of the Group connecting to the pipelines
of two customers of Celanese; (iv) the Fourth Supplemental
Pipe Racks Agreement entered into between the Group and
Nanjing CIPC on 3 December 2012, pursuant to which Nanjing
CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for the Ethyl
Acetate and Ethanol pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park. The Fourth Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement
shall be with effect from 1 March 2013; and (v) the Fifth
Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement entered into between
the Group and Nanjing CIPC in August 2013, pursuant to
which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe
racks for cryogenic ethylene at Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park. The Fifth Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement was
effective from 1 October 2013 and was entered into to modify
the previous pipe racks agreements with an additional annual
cost of approximately RMB956,000 for renting additional pipe
racks. The Pipe Racks Services Agreements are for a period
of 15 years from 15 March 2007 to 14 March 2022 and can
be extended for a further five years upon expiry unless the
parties thereto terminate the Pipe Racks Services Agreements.
The fees payable for the pipe racks rental by the Group are
principally determined by the occupied area of pipelines in
the pipe racks rented to the Group by Nanjing CIPC subject
to adjustment with reference to bank lending interest rate,
consumer price index, inflation, etc.. The terms offered by
Nanjing CIPC to the Group are no less favourable than those
offered by other Independent Third Parties in the ordinary
course of business.
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In addition, in March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPPS,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, entered into
a security services agreement (the “Security Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPPS agreed to
provide security services for the pipe racks rented by the
Group at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. Nanjing CIPPS
shall provide security, patrol and monitor services of the
Group’s pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Security Services Agreement is for a period of 15 years from
15 March 2007 to 14 March 2022 and can be extended for
a further five years upon expiry unless the parties thereto
terminate the Security Services Agreements.

Nanjing CIPC is interested in 11.39% equity interest in Nanjing
Dragon Crown, which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Nanjing CIPC is thus a connected person of the
Company solely by reason that it is a substantial shareholder
of Nanjing Dragon Crown. In addition, since Nanjing CIPPS
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, it is thus a
connected person of the Company by reason that it is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, a substantial
shareholder of Nanjing Dragon Crown.

As each of Nanjing CIPC and Nanjing CIPPS is a connected
person of the Company, each of the Pipe Racks Agreements
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

On 12 February 2015, Dragon Crown Petrochemicals
Terminals (Holdings) Limited entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Nanjing CIPC for the acquisition of 1.4%
equity interest in Nanjing Dragon Crown. The acquisition was
completed on 30 April 2015. Subsequent to the acquisition,
the Group held more 90% equity interest in Nanjing Dragon
Crown, Nanjing CIPC ceased to be the substantial shareholder
of Nanjing Dragon Crown, and Nanjing CIPC and Nanjing
CIPPS ceased to be a connected person of the Company.

The fees payable for the security services by the Group under
the Security Services Agreement are principally determined by
the length of pipe racks at a maximum of 10 kilometres which
requires the provision of security services by Nanjing CIPPS.
The terms offered by Nanjing CIPPS to the Group are no less
favourable than those offered by other Independent Third
Parties in the ordinary course of business.
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(C) Renewed Office Lease Agreement

On 3 December 2012, the Renewed Office Lease Agreement
was entered into between DC Investments as landlord and
the Group as tenant in respect of the premises located at Unit
No. 3 on the 18th Floor of Convention Plaza, Office Tower,
No. 1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong, with a gross floor area of
approximately 2,227 square feet for a fixed term of three years
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. The property is
currently occupied by the Group for office use.

The annual rent payable to DC Investments was determined at
arm'’s length negotiation between the parties to the Renewed
Office Lease Agreement with reference to the valuation made
by the independent property valuer of the Company, Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, and the previous
transaction between the parties.

The lease agreement was subsequently renewed for another
three years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. The
annual rent payable under the renewed lease agreement was
determined with reference to neighbouring market rent for
similar rank and size office and previous transaction between
the parties. Pursuant to Rule 14A.76, since the annual
rent is fixed at an amount below HK$3,000,000 and all the
percentage ratios (other than profits ratio) are less than 5%, the
transaction is fully exempted from the reporting and approval
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
its business; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have not qualified its report in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy of
the auditor’s letter confirming the matters set out under Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 33 to
the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2015, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable

date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ng Wai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 54 to 137, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBRER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F 12 A31 HIEFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B sE FET FET
REVENUE 'ON 6 269,104 261,574
Cost of services provided RAEARTSA AR (123,993) (112,059)
Gross profit EH 145,111 149,515
Other income HapgA 7 11,893 8,431
Administrative expenses IR (47,051) (45,425)
Finance costs BUE KA 8 (1,661) (4,367)
Share of profits and losses of: FEML R A KBS -
Associate NG (3,037) (529)
Joint ventures R 5,850 6,495
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 9 111,105 114,120
Tax HiIE 12 (23,010) (20,910)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREA 88,095 93,210
Attributable to: AN ALER
Owners of the Company ARARHEAA 77,118 80,933
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 10,977 12,277
88,095 93,210
EARNINGS PER SHARE KATREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EhEREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (784l)
(HK cents)
Basic AR 14 6.95 7.29

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEXHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F 12 531 HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income
to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Share of changes in exchange
reserve of an associate

Share of changes in exchange
reserve of joint ventures

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FREF

HitZE WA

RIREMEENDRE

Bz Hib 2 ERA

ew%e@
SRR

EEA%E¥
S EED

BEBINEIER
PR ERR

FREE
LN X

AT AL RS -
ZA/NCIEZZS N
IR R

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
88,095 93,210
(785) (506)
(947) 617)
(39,218) (20,844)
(40,950) (21,967)
47,145 71,243
38,582 60,872
8,563 10,371
47,145 71,243
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Re MR &
31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Gooadwill

Investment in an associate
Investments in joint ventures
Prepayments

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Account and bill receivables
Prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

FRBEE
E NI E
B TimES

FREBEERE
RBEE
&
LIS ES
BN BE R
H A & WURR
RelBREEHED
mBEERE

REAE

HLA R 5 SRR e BT B
FHRERITER
FERTEIR

RBRERE
REBEEFE
REERABAE

FRBEE
FHRIRITER
EEFBRRE

FFRBAERE
AEEFE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

Notes

it

15
16
17
18
19
21

20

21
22

24

24
25

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TR
687,049 766,286
37,786 40,548
1,210 1,210
15,567 19,389
26,204 27,467
4,220 =
772,036 854,900
2,873 3,241
42,940 32,022
10,787 3,652
211,225 322,550
267,825 361,465
24,501 71,535
28,333 90,798
5,564 1,420
58,398 163,753
209,427 197,712
981,463 1,062,612
14,167 42,500
4,868 5,083
19,035 47,583
962,428 1,005,029




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B RR

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FaE FEx THT
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners AATEBA
of the Company b=
Share capital [N 26 110,966 110,966
Reserves (= 28 799,588 828,018
910,554 038,984
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRE R 51,874 66,045
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 962,428 1,005,029
Ng Wai Man Ting Yian Ann
RER RER
Director Director
Ex EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEEBER

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE20155 12 A31 HILFE

Note
i

At 1 danuary 2015 RNBEIRTA
Proft o the year Ef
Other comprehensiv ncome o e year: ERERRENA:
Stre o changes nexchange ELBENTH
Tese 0f an assocee ERRER
S of changes nexchange Eiiagts
resee of it ventures HERRERD
Exchenge iferences on tarslaon of RERNZRE
foein aperations EizE
Tota compehensive ncomeloss) fortheyear —~ EMZEMA/(BR)4E
Appropriaon o stautoryresene AEiEhE

Acquistion of addtond meressinasubsilay ~ WEHBATEEA

Fine 2014 dhidends MLEREARE 13
Dhicends decved onon-controlingmerests SR ZFEEER 28

Inteim 2015 ividends REEETEL 13
At 31 December 2015 R0t5E12A31H

*

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAARRARR
Exchange
Reserve fluctuation Non-
Share Share funds* Capital reserve  Retained controling Total
capital premium BE  oresene  EXRD pofis Totdl  interests  equity
LS Vi A B RER g 4iRER  BefE
HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSOO0  HKSOBO  HKS0O
Thn Tin Tin #n in Tin THn THn THn
(note 28] (note28(i)  (note 28fii)
(Watosi)  (Kseos)  (Bostosgi)
110066 431,509 11,348 2952 88543 213666 938984 66,045 1,005,029
T8 118 10917 8,005
(785 (785 - (785
(o47) (o4 - (o4
(36,804) (36,804) QAY  o21g
(38,53) 118 38,962 8,563 1145
1093 (1,200 (107) 107 -
(2.549) (2,545) (1,140) (9,685
(@6 (267 - é2,16)
- (18,701) (18,701)
(2199 (2199 - (22,199
10966 431,509 12441 0407 S000m 285,204 910,554 51874 962428
* FEECOEEEBERRIRAE SRR

The reserve funds include the share of reserves of an associate

and joint ventures of HK$4,486,000 (2014: HK$4,355,000).

*k

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$799,588,000 (2014: HK$828,018,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

#5 4,486,000 7T (2014 4 : 4,355,000 78

JT) °

o ZERBREFEBESAMBRIERA

B AR B

828,018,000/ 7T) °

& f 48799,588,000 7 7T (2014 4 :



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F 12 31 HILFE

Attioutable fo owners of the Company

RATREARR
Bxchange
Resene flctuation Non-
Share Share funds* Cepta resene  Refaned contoling Totd

apid  pemim B omew BN prffs Tod  inerests ey
Bt BiE B EAER B RAEH B fiRER  ERuE
Note HSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKO0D  HKSOO0  HKSOO  HKSOW
fiit Tar T TEr At TR TEL TRt TR TEn
(oe 28l (ote28()  (note 28fi)
(Metom)  (ostomg)  (Bkosg)

AT January 2014 ROMEIR1A 110966 431,509 10,250 2.%2 108,604 28315 925% 68899 10114%
Protfor e year ERgH - - - - SNm N R %20
Othercomprehensive income o the year: ERER2EA -
e of changes nexchange EiBe0an
reseve o assocales ExfEsy - (506 - {506 - 1505
Sre of changes nexchange Eliaets
resere of ot ventures HERRERD - 17 - 617 - 617
Exchange diferences on s RERIERE
of foreign opetons EizE - (189 - (189 196 20
Tota compehensive ncomeloss) fortheyear ~ ER2EUN/(BR) 48 1 I 11K 2N (K 71213
Approprieon o stautoryresene Btk - - (1222 (124 1 -
Fod 201 e WIYERERE - - e (e -
Dhicends declred onon-controling meress ~ EEZFARELZRE - - - -3 (33
Interim 2014 cividends NELERS 13 - - [22199) [22199) - 22199
At 31 December 2014 ROUERANA 2% B 23666 938984 6604 1,006,029
# Retained profits have been adjusted for the proposed final 2014 i RBHENEDRIBARFEE 2B EZE 2014 F

REBLE T IAGHE - Sl B HRaR MY 5E

is described in note 3 to the financial statements. 3e

dividend in accordance with the current year’s presentation, which

Annual Report 2015 FERE 59



60

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2 A ==
mERERER
Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F 12 A31 HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments
Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Share of profits and losses of:
Associate
Joint ventures

Decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in account
and bill receivables

Increase in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in other
payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment
Deposit paid for acquisition of
an investment
Interest received
Dividends received from joint ventures
Decrease in time deposits with
original maturity of over three
months when acquired

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

Notes

BT

REEHELE
ZHRERE
BT Bl A
AT B IR
BB
RITHLEUWA
wE
iRt

T #H 9
HEWE - BE

RiBAE EE 9

FEIG 52 R 1R

ik NC]

BEME

© ~ 0

FER D

LG WSS
wA (HEhn)

BN e MEA
JEWURRIR R N

oAty FEA SRR S FE AT
BRI, Of)

REMBRE
E#HIA

RETDMFRSREFE

REEBHELE
ZRERE
BEVE  BE
RiEAERE
RUBREE MRS
21
EUFLE
BREEREEE
RERRED B BB
={8A ZEHFFRLD
22

RERSMA

RERmEFRE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
111,105 114,120
1,661 4,367
(4,945) (7,055)
53,620 46,145
976 995
154 186
3,037 529
(5,850) (6,495)
159,758 152,792
230 295
(12,775) 12,586
(5,601) (666)
483 (5,335)
142,095 159,672
(18,683) (24,822)
123,412 134,850
(34,894) (60,089)
(6,061) -
4,945 7,055
6,156 6,130
18,864 19,557
(10,990) (27,347)




CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank loans

Acquisition of additional interests
in a subsidiary

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests

Interest paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with
original maturity of less than three
months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes

M

BMEETBHEEZ
RERE

BERITER
W B A BRI ME RS

Bk

EfAE

SIS T IEFERR
I E

EfNFE

BERBTARSREFHE

RERBRESEEY
g, (R B

RENZ RS
BREEEN

% )
MEYE 58

RERZRE
REEZEY

ReERRSEEY

Ee = ks
e RIRITHERR 22
U B RF JR E EI ER B
PR=@EAZ

TE B 22

R kBReEED

= =B
FERERER
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F 12 31 HILFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(90,038) (14,167)
(9,685) -
(64,360) (64,360)
(34,353) -
(1,661) (4,367)
(200,097) (82,894)
(87,675) 24,609
303,686 282,034
(4,786) (2,957)
211,225 303,686
52,423 110,718
158,802 192,968
211,225 303,686
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Notes to Financial Statements

IR M

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business
in Hong Kong is Unit No.3, 18th Floor, Convention Plaza,
Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong. The Group is
principally engaged in terminal storage and handling of liquid
chemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Lirun Limited, which is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2015 are as follows:

LFIRKREEH

EAREZERAERAR(ARA DR
BR=HSREER20106F7 A 16
B L ABEREER AT - K
Rl E R AL Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° AR AR BB ZLLE S
R BEBBEE1RERESHAKN
B18183E - AEEFENFREI(
SRR RREET -

RRBEZRRS  ARRRELIERR
BAIRRRBEARES ((RBERAR
B EMKZZBREERRNE
BRAR -

TRMEBARZER

ARABR 2015512 A 31 B AT EHt
BARFENT

Place of Issued

incorporation/ ordinary/

registration registered

Name and business share capital
MR/ B#T

8 BHIPES ek B /imRA
Ocean Ahead Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$100
RERBREE/BE 100%71

Edford Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1
SIREBRAR EBGBREE/BR 137
Dragon Bussan International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US$600,000
EMERRAA A Non-voting deferred
1US$900,000 (note a)

E1iR600,000%TT

BRZEET

1t 900,000% 7

(Ffia)

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
PG 3130¢
Bl TERH
Direct Indirect
B E:3
100 - Investment holding
RARR
- 100 Investment holding
RARR
- 100 Investment holding
and provision of
marketing services

RERRL TS
HERRIS



Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name

£

Dragon Crown Petrochemicals
Terminal (Holdings) Limited
BRI HE (RE) ERAF

Dragon Source Industrial Limited

EMCIARAR

Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid
Chemical Terminal Company
Limited (“NJDC”) (notes b and ¢)

HRENRB IHERSE
AR (AR (Wb Ke)

Qcean Access Investments Limited
BRERBRAR

Overseas Hong Kong Investment Limited

BHBRERERRAT

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
EMEL/
BEIES ek

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China
T/ RER

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&E

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BEf7

LB /mRA

Ordinary US$26,600,000
Non-voting deferred
US$500,000 (note a)

L1k 26,600,000% T
ERSEERL
#%500,000% T
(Fisa)

Ordinary HK$26,000,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000 (note a)
LM% 26,000,000/
EREERL
#%2,000,000 757
(Fia)

1S$52,254,820
52,254,820 7T

HKS 1
187

HK$10,000
10,0007

BT ERARMYRE

31 December 2015
201512 A 31 H

LFREERH (F)

FRMBARZER (&)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
FARELRE

BAK
Direct

B

Indirect

A

100

100

90.01

100

100

Principal activities

TERK

Investment holding
and provision of
finance and
management services
RERRRRAHEN
HEL

Investment holding
and provision of
accounting services

AR R ER RS

Terminal storage
and handling of
liquid chemicals
RE EREE R RER

Investment holding
and provision of
administrative and
technical services

RERR RS
TR ATARA

Provision of business
development service

RERBRERS
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

1.

2.1

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EFIEEE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(a) The non-voting deferred shares do not entitle the holders
thereof to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting of the respective companies. The holders
of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to any
dividends. On a winding-up, the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares are entitled, out of the surplus assets of the
respective companies, to a return of the capital paid up on
the non-voting deferred shares held by them to one half of
the balance after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000
has been distributed in such winding-up in respect of the
ordinary shares of the respective companies.

(o)  The dividend distribution of this subsidiary is subject to the
approval of the lender under a bank facility arrangement. As
at 31 December 2015, such bank facility arrangement was
ceased.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
acquired an additional 1.4% equity interest in NJDC from a
non-controlling shareholder.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

ZERERDA

2.1

LFRRERH (F)

FRMBARZER (&)

@ EREERTROLERETHEBS
BAENBBREBRBRRAS B
AEHFEFARRAEINE L’
o BREBELEROFE AERE
WEEIAL S o OBRRES - EIGR
BETENFHAEA  AREEHEA
RIBEBRBEET  BRERZHMEE

&K%ELHx@%&EZHx$ &
ﬁz%/ﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ By LA AR
Ik #%8100,000 OO0,000,000f’%ﬁ?ﬁ
BB _—DZ— -

(b) ﬂi%ﬁfﬂfmﬂéﬁﬁt ZIMBRFZ
BEDERARFERAZIAE - 1
2015@12)%315 E%Eﬁ@éfzz}#
B LE

) MEZE2015F12F31HIEFE -
AN E B IR AR SR U B R
ZEBIN 4% BRAE o

EERR - R ZEARARMER
AIFEHAFREEEELETENIEK
ZKE.KJB ﬁgﬁﬁ{g i%wu#] !

Al E AR BBIRECE
FHER TR -

EHES

ZEMBRERIBRBEE LGOS
Bz BEEMBIRE LR ([ FBHE

HEEA D) (@%ﬁﬁﬁi&%ﬁﬂx#&i
A EAGEMN(EEGE
Al REE)  BEARETRAR
BRERBMRDIZ EHERTE MRS © %
FEM IR IIRE LR ANEPIREL -
BRBEAIN  ZERBHRRABT
25 MAASREFABEREIT

ABTT



2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

2.1

BT ERARMYRE

31 December 2015
201512 A 31 H

WREEE)

FEVBBERBEARTREMEA
Al (&l [ A%EE ) RBIE20154 12
RA31BIEFE 2wk - [MEAR
ABARBEEIEEEFINEE (8
REBEER) EAEEH2HEE
BEHREBHFB R HRAERRNE
BREFIAREEFEREIREHROEN
(IWAEEER THREE N NUEEE
BEHRAMEBNTFREN) 2%
Z (o) TR - BIERIS SRR

HARBERIERAERERAZH
MR EHREZRELER - AIARE
ERFEEREHREHREHRNE
NEEEE—UHBEEERERL &
EEE

(@) BEREHFEMREFEAN
BRI

b) HMEHLRBMELMNEN:
54

(€ AEBENREELEERTE-

B8 A Bl 2 I B Rk Ty B AR R R4
[F) BA e AR A R B — B2 & RTIR
RS- WBARZEEHEAEE
ERUEHIEZ BET RS - BR%
SRR AT SRS -
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

2.1

2.2

WREEE)
REEE(E)

BakEMEEWAZ SAEKEED
BRARBIEA A KSR D - B
FEE B s IR AL AR
FESRBEARRRHEENRAE #
@ WA XHARERKERE R
AZERZEBCETREINGR
BB R AR BRI -

HEERBRABR TXMHBARIES
BER At = TRIE B R H A — I8,
ZHEE  AIAKESER/RRZENA
ZHIIREHR - B ARIBEERER
2B (WK EEDE) - RARKE
FIVEHERRR 5

el AN 5= B 2K 25 — PRI P JBB 1% @) -2 4% )
- RlgRIEER)ZMBRARZE
E(BEEE) RAE - (i) ERFHER
2 2 BRTE B K (iii) i WA BRH) R
AHEEN ERE - WHER () ERREM A
RfE - () EREFRERENDAER
(il) T AR E AR A th Bl -
ERNEMEERACHERNANEE
FRIEE D TR FIEN - RiEAEEE
EHERBEEXABMERKHAER
HESHM OB E R SREER o

B BREBREE

AEBCRAFE 2P HE]ME ERIR
T IIEERT R -

BAGFERNE19RIETREEFET
BB B IR ER2010 F 2 2012 F
PR Z F [E 2
BB R 2ER 2011 FEZ 2013 F
PREZ FEH#



Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of each amendment and

interpretation is described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions
that are independent of the number of years of employee
service, for example, employee contributions that are
calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary.
If the amount of the contributions is independent of
the number of years of service, an entity is permitted
to recognise such contributions as a reduction of
service cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group does not have defined benefit plans.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are
effective for the current year are as follows:

° HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an
entity must disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria in
HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the
economic characteristics used to assess whether
the segments are similar. The amendments also
clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets to
total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating
decision maker. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
g E

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(o)  (continued)

o HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment
of gross carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation or amortisation of revalued items
of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply the
revaluation model for the measurement of these
assets.

° HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements.
In addition, an entity that uses a management
entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred
for management services. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group as the Group does
not receive any management services from other
entities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are
effective for the current year are as follows:

o HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that
joint arrangements but not joint ventures are
outside the scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope
exception applies only to the accounting in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.
The amendment is applied prospectively. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as
the Company is not a joint arrangement and the
Group did not form any joint arrangement during
the year.

° HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be
applied not only to financial assets and financial
liabilities, but also to other contracts within the
scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as applicable.
The amendment is applied prospectively from the
beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 13
was initially applied. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not apply
the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.
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Notes to Financial Statements
g E

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) (continued)

° HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that
HKFRS 3, instead of the description of ancillary
services in HKAS 40 which differentiates between
investment property and owner-occupied
property, is used to determine if the transaction is
a purchase of an asset or a business combination.
The amendment is applied prospectively for
acquisitions of investment properties. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as
the amendment does not apply to the Group.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) issued
by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure
of financial information with reference to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial
year. The main impact to the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 CHEMERKRENZEEMNERSE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) pi-:[ =)
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative' ERGTENE 1R REAE
HKAS 1 5
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of B ERNE165% EENEREENT
HKAS 16 and Depreciation and Amortisation’ KEB e &R BRZIZ
HKAS 38 F 385k 53]
Amendmentsto  Agriculture: Bearer Plants' BREIERE6R EX  LEMEY
HKAS 16 and REBGHER
HKAS 41 F415E7]
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial BREGTENETR BUHBFEEAE
HKAS 27 (2011)  Statements' (2011 ) B3] ok
Annual Amendments to a number of HKFRSs' 2012F2 20148 BTHEBUBEREE
Improvements ZEELE BlZE:T
2012-2014 Cycle
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g M2016%1 A1 Bz MK 2 FE
2016 B A 3K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R2018%F1 A1 Hk Z MM 2 FE
2018 B A 3K
8 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual 8 ML ERE201651 A1 B2 & F
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 B2 FEMBHRERPERENE D
and therefore is not applicable to the Group B GRS QIR A 3 BU T E A
NS
= No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available 4 L R FE BB ] R AR 2 s sl A
for adoption =gt
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

BT ERARMYRE

31 December 2015
201512 A 31 H

FEEHHREBR

ERasREE

EBEHTIIAWEEARR - EEEN
BRWERAHZAREFE 22N
BERASEMEREENRERYZ
DRfE - AEERKEETRIEE A
AEN B ERANEESREIETT
EHEPTETT 2 BRA a2 AN -
EXBAMHT  AREEEZERTUR
A ESAR TS A BRI B EFERE
B FFENRWES BREHES
AR E IEE IR - W THA A
R - RRREIRLL A DR ERAFE
BE o FFIERERZ — Y EMR D T)
BRRERE - WEHEBRAREL
R 5 AR

EAKEWE-EEHE 0 8RES
HER ~ RIS B eV IR R o 4
B SHEREAENEREERA
& MMEHBEEN D BERER - &
BREGHKIETT AP ORART
ETEETORE -

b EE PP RETT - LAIFER
IREZENIE B BRN AR EEH
2 - MAEE 2 E AR ESSEERE
AP RER ©

P KRR i T IR A (AR SRR B
WERRRARERR - DEREE
HEBEBNIAREBEZAAEFE A
AR BEHAUNERER - HOHE
SESNIARETSEHNTE - B
BAEEERAAR

Annual Report 2015 FE#H &

73



74
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e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in the statement
of profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset or
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3.17%-19%
Motor vehicles 19%
Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
period the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.

Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate

category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rental payables under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in other operating expenses for
receivables.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (that is, the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or decreased
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities which include other payables and accruals,
and interest-bearing bank loans are initially stated at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and asset similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use
in the operation, and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the regions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered;

(b) rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

BT ERAR MY RE

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

FEEBREE(E)

FriSH (48)

ERERIRE ERREENSERE B
RIEH RS - I HRLZE R B A1l T
BRIAEM B KD IR E E Pl 18
B o RIRHERHEERIREEIR &
WEREHE - LR
RSB R ELEHRIAERE R
(Bl b5 FERR ©

EEHRAEERARIIZBEHERR
BREENEERBEREOVE - 1%
RN EHmEHAREFIERE L HERN
B (RBE)FHE

AR LR SR FI TRV RER] - <
BRI REE M AR A E R EE
HiH - METHARR —ERVER
RFA—MHEHERR  AIETEHAER
ENREHARBRSHEH

PN 32
MRBEENRATESRAANEE -
A X BESAR & T 51 B R] Se At

B AlSmREA

(@ RERS  NIRBCIRHRE

B

b)) WA EHOHEUESR

PREHE

Annual Report 2015 FE#H &

87



88

Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) compensation income, when the Group’s legal right
has been established and the collectability is reasonably
assured.

Employee benefits - Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the Company’s functional currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).
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31 December 2015
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of those entities comprising the Group in which
their functional currencies are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of those entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

FEEHBREE(E)

L AC )

MBAR  BERTARAERE
REERIIEETT - RIMEHIR -

BHEERABRHD BIRERE
HIRMERBMBE LA - AEBsR
REE O IAEFE RME QBT -
FpEERER ZRREm2EEA
HERIL RET A AE L RS HE - FH
EBINERE - BN EBINEHE
sV E M2 E KA D R IEs R g

o
=2
o °

=

=T
P2
HEE

WiE BN EIEE A 2 (ERIRE A U
EMHEERAGERAEZEMNAA
ERAEGIMEBI KRBT ZEERA
& WAlmEREZE -

RABRSRERME + WAETTAIN
M ERRERMNAKEE TEER
RenERAeREELERMER
RBMBARRBNZINEE o BINITE
ARRBEFEAEENRERRSR
ERFANIEFHERBERETT -



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

Notes to Financial Statements

3. FEd
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(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s ()

family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy  is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b)

conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow

subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for

the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group;

BT R—BALTHZALTZ
BETIREKE » MaAL
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(i) HAKEEEATE =K
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Epdp4=UNCIE

iy ZEBRS—EREMHE
DRI AEEHE(KZE
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. In
prior years, final dividends proposed by the directors were
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting or in the case of subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”), by the board of directors. Following the
implementation of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of each reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

BT ERAR MY RE

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on
the straight-line basis over the property, plant and equipment’s
estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment to be five to
thirty years. Changes in the expected level of usage and/or
the period over which future economic benefits are generated
could impact the economic useful lives of the assets and,
therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment arises when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposal of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2015 was
HK$1,210,000 (2014: HK$1,210,000). Further details are
given in note 17 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of account receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment of
account receivables arising from the inability of its debtors to
make the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness, past repayment history and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis
of making the allowance. The carrying amount of account
receivables at 31 December 2015 was HK$42,940,000 (2014:
HK$32,022,000). Further details are given in note 20 to the
financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

No separate analysis of segment information is presented by
the Group as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and
assets are related to the terminal storage and handling of liquid
chemicals business in Mainland China.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue from a major customer, whose entities below are
within the same group and in aggregate amounted to 10% or

more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of services
rendered for terminal storage and the handling of liquid
chemicals during the year, after business tax and value-added

tax.

OTHER INCOME

An analysis of other income is as follows:

Bank interest income
Compensation income

Gross rental income
Others

BFEA
%P B
EFC
EFD

RITABHA
BEEA
iGN
HAth

B RS R R BT RE

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

wEIBAH(E)

KB & HEREEKA10% KA LM

FTREF(ETXEEER—KE)H

WAHZIEAT -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
102,530 103,238
87,206 101,128
23,100 23,180
20,706 20,961
233,542 248,502

WA

WASERAF AR R B2 MmN
BEREFNEERERENERFE
(REINERE RSB ERR) ©

Htnr A
HWADAT -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$000
TER TAET
4,945 7,055
5,309 -
885 661
754 715
11,893 8,431
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31 December 2015
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8.
Interest on bank loans SRITEROHE
9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9.

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes
Bt e
Depreciation nE 15
Amortisation of prepaid A TS
land lease payments B 5 16
Minimum lease payments MAEYER
under operating leases of EIREETRR
office premises and pipe racks HRIEAE R
Auditors’ remuneration ZEM 2
Directors’ remuneration FEMWE 10
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BITHRA (T
remuneration): BEEME)
Wages, salaries and other benefits ~T& « ¥4 K& E A g7
Pension scheme contributions* RIRBETEIfHR
Gross rental income He WAL 7
Less: Outgoings w28
Loss on disposal of items of LEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment BiEEIE

Foreign exchange differences, net  [EX Z=%8 « /F58

* As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no forfeited
contribution available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years.

98 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

MERE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
1,661 4,367
FRIRATRF
BREATH AR, (GEA) -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
53,620 46,145
976 995
15,254 15,528
1,150 1,105
6,708 6,885
22,780 21,388
4,624 4,197
27,404 25,585
(885) (661)
44 33
(841) (628)
154 186
4,675 5,354

. MR2015%F 12 A31 H » "EEL £
SR SR R R EA] AR A H

RIREFHEIER -



10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

Fees
— Executive directors
— Independent non-executive directors
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

2015

Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREE
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BEZtE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HAERE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BBt

Br RS R BT RE

31 December 2015
201512 H31 H

10. EE#£
BHEETHE - HEQAEOE
383(1)(@) * (b) * (c) K (N IFA KR AT (H#
BEEMZER) ROIE 2 R ER AR
FEEEMSWT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
HE
—WITES - -
— BN IEHITES 540 540
HMITESEAME -
e R REYET 6,132 6,311
RIS EH B 36 34
6,708 6,885
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e 28 Bikg
we  REWEA HE 5 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TEx FERT FEx FEx
- 3,286 - 3,286
- 1,426 18 1,444
- 1,420 18 1,438
- 6,132 36 6,168
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31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. ES=#M&(Z2)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
= BRE
we  REWEN stEIfR Ek)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT TAL

2014
Executive directors: HITES :
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREE - 390 - 390
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BEREE - 3,149 - 3,149
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HAERE - 1,365 17 1,382
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BEat - 1,407 17 1424
- 6,311 34 6,345
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the FARARNRABBLIFNTEE N2
Company during the year were as follows: MW :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen BIFIRFEE 240 240
Mr. Luo Shijie SRt HE e A 150 150
Mr. Zhu Wujun RRELSE 150 150
540 540
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FREREN B IFRITES ¥
non-executive directors during the year (2014: Ni). B (20144 : &) o
Save as disclosed above, no remuneration was paid or B EXFriEE I - AEBRFARIL
payable by the Group to directors of the Company during the EARENKENARRESTNHE
year (2014: Nil). (20145 : =) -
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11.

Notes to Financial Statements

BT ERAR MY RE

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEM& (2
No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the FR - AEEWEEMCAHEMAK
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon RAIEENME  EAMARE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during FRMBENES S IEAREEE
the year (2014: Nil). (20144 : &) -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RAFERN  BMEZEENEXRENR
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2014: Nil). EEAMEHNZEE(2014F : T) o
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11. IEEEFHER
The five highest paid employees during the year included three RAFERNLERFNEERE=
(2014: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set H(2014F : =R )EE - HEFMF
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year IBER EXHIFE10 - 82 T4 (2014
of the remaining two (2014: two) highest paid employees who F:RB)WIIERNRREEN R I
are not directors of the Company, are as follows: BiE B ME B IE AT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind %< - Ei R EWEF 2,090 2,352
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIMER 12 17
2,102 2,369
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose HN T Y ESENIEEE RS 5
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: EEMNHEBWT :
Number of employees
EEWEE
2015 2014
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 77T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 870 1,500,000 7 7T 1 2
2 2

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2014: Nil).

REBERAFE NI EEAE T E
NhasaFESNME - R
AR DA ZS £ (B85 1) 28 ok B L B
E(20144F : T) -
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20154 12 A 31 H

12.

INCOME TAX

Current — Hong Kong BNHA — &%
Charge for the year REF T H
Overprovision in prior years BAEFEBERE

Current — Elsewhere BNEA— E bt 5

Charge for the year REF T H
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR

Deferred — note 25 PRIE —FIRE25

Total tax charge for the year

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Under the new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
Implementation Rules (effective from 1 January 2008), the
PRC Corporate Income Tax rates for domestic and foreign-
invested enterprises are unified at 25%. The other major
tax concessions applicable to the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiary are detailed below.

Pursuant to the tax document Guoshui Han 2007 No. 2
“Approval on Corporate Income Tax” issued by the national tax
authority of Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, Nanjing
Dragon Crown Liquid Chemical Terminal Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, is entitled to preferential tax treatment
with full tax exemption from PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
for the first five profitable years, commencing from 1 January
2007, and thereafter is entitled to a 50% deduction in the CIT
rate for the subsequent five years. The Group’s assessable
income was subject to a CIT rate of 12.5% for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: 12.5%).
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12. Fri@RR

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THET
33 33

(25) (10)
16,600 15,989
11 -

6,391 4,898
23,010 20,910

EEFEGRERAFEARBTBESE
BT FERR RO FIA16.5% (20144 -
16.5%) FORT R A ©

AEBEEFBAH L LSRR
HEHNEARBRITER - 2B LB
BRBERMRTHEG ERIA -

REFPBEEERETEREEHE
PI(E200851 A1 HERER) - RE
KRONEBENPBEEEMERTE XS
—3325% ° EARANEE T E At
BRI EMEBRBER RN N

it o

RIS BT 84 B = BB B AR A
TR IS S BFR 142007 2557 [ BER 1 2
FIEMMEL]  AEBHBARM
REARECIHEHRERRARE
BEEIHBFH - R2007F1H1H
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JR(TREMEHR])  HehFa=
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12.

INCOME TAX (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position
at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

2015

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the applicable tax rates
Lower tax rate due to concession
Income not subject to tax
Expense not deductible for tax
Tax loss utilised
Tax loss not recognised
Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous years
Effect of withholding tax on
the distributable
profits of the Group’s
Mainland China subsidiary,
associate and joint ventures

Tax charge for the year

BBATaM, (E1R)

BE R R EHTIR
HRREESHE TR’
BARBA
TR A X
BRI AREE
REERHTHIAR R
BEFEEANENIA
Z A
A& B P B A B
nAE) -~ BERRR
BELEAINE
EAN BN E

REFHIARMX

12. FiWR (&)

B RS R R BT RE

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

BARRAREWB AR MEREER
BATE B R 5T B E AR BR A BDE A
MB RS B AREERRERAE

AR B BRIA T
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
&% HERit HBEr
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
FHET THET FHET
(11,987) 123,092 111,105
(1,978) 30,773 28,795
- (14,774) (14,774)
(4,144) - (4,144)
2,923 601 3,524
(113) - (113)
3,345 - 3,345
(25) 11 (14)
- 6,391 6,391
8 23,002 23,010
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31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

12. INCOME TAX (continued)

2014

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the applicable tax rates
Lower tax rate due to concession
Income not subject to tax
Expense not deductible for tax
Tax loss utilised
Tax loss not recognised
Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous years
Effect of withholding tax on
the distributable
profits of the Group’s
Mainland China subsidiary,
associates and joint ventures

Tax charge for the year

SBATER,(B1R)

REABETERNTIE
HRER ST ERTRE
BERBUA
R k03
EEABIEEE
RIERBIEEE
B FE AR IE
Z R
A E P B At S
NE - BT R
BECEHE
A B TE IR A R 2

AFEHRIARMX

The share of tax attributable to an associate and joint ventures
amounting to Nil (2014: HK$236,000) and HK$2,156,000
(2014: HK$2,274,000) are included in share of profits and
losses of an associate and joint ventures, respectively, in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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12. FRGM(E)

Mainland

Hong Kong China Total
/A REAM #Et
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
(10,749 124,869 114,120
(1,774) 31,217 29,443
- (15,881) (15,881)

(2,197) - (2,197)
871 653 1,524

(126) - (126)
3,259 - 3,259
(10) - (10)

- 4,898 4,898

23 20,887 20,910

EHEBERARIREEREMNERT

(20144F : 236,000/87C) & 2,156,000

7T (20144F : 2,274,0008 7T ) * 2
DRI AR A Bk NELEE AR
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B R R M =E

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

13. DIVIDENDS 13. KR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FAT
Interim dividends — HK2.0 cents PEAR B — B R
(2014: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share 2.0l (2014 4F : 2.0581l) 22,193 22,193
Proposed final dividends — HK2.3 cents EEAERE —ERE B
(2014: HK3.8 cents) per ordinary share 2.3 (2014 4F : 3.8781l) 25,522 42,167
47,715 64,360
On 12 August 2015, the board of directors declared an interim MN201548 A12H  EESETRET
dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share. A& AL 2.0 B IL A F EARR 8. -
The proposed final dividends for the year ended 31 December HZE2015F 12 A31 HIEFEMES
2015 is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders REAR BZENEERR AT L
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. BARREIIRRALAE ©
The proposed final dividends for the year ended 31 December 7201545 A 20 H B AR EBEF K
2014 was approved at the annual general meeting on 20 May @ HbEEZE 2014612 31 HILF
2015. VAR -
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. EAFHEEAERGSRETR
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: FRERBN ZTEER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to owners of the NAREB AFE
Company, used in the basic 1R - ARETE
earnings per share calculation SR EAREF] 77,118 80,933

Number of shares

RHEE

Shares idni)
Weighted average number of RARIEBITE AR

ordinary shares of the Company IntEFE - BARETE

in issue, used in the basic FIEAREF|

earnings per share calculation 1,109,662,000 1,109,662,000
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no B R & 220154 & 20144512 A 31
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the years ended HIEFEATEETEHECETTR
31 December 2015 and 2014. i - AR 25| GAREEE &R o
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:
At 1 January 2014
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015

A

201441 A1H
RE

R

=

B

2014512 318
R2015%1 A18

RE

g%

&

B

1201512 A31 B

Accumulated depreciation: Z:tH7E :

At 1 January 2014

Provided for during
the year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015

Provided for during
the year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

20141 A1 8
FREE-HE9

&
I 5 AR

201412 A31 B
R2015%1 A1H
FREE-HEI

irf=
R
7201512 A31 B

FEFE:
1201512 A31 B

R2014%F12 A31 B

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R R BT RE

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

15. W% - BERXME

Construction Buildings and Motor Office
in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
HRIE BTRESEY RE BAERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL TAT TAL TAL
82,615 888,936 4,760 1,684 978,045
69,828 6,932 894 110 77,764
(140,030) 140,030 - - -
= (65) (329) (14) (394)
(1,538) (23,014) (102) (39) (24,687)
10,875 1,012,879 5,227 1,747 1,030,728
3,870 3,747 - 135 7,752
(9,031) 9,031 - - -
6) (307) - (72) (385)
(316) (46,217) (200) (60) (46,793)
5,392 979,133 5,027 1,750 991,302
- 220,683 2,616 1,036 224,335
- 45,228 710 207 46,145
- (195) = (19) (208)
- (6,748) (59) (29) (6,830)
- 259,968 3,267 1,207 264,442
- 52,755 655 210 53,620
- (205) - (26) (231)
- (13,390) (140) (48) (13,578)
- 299,128 3,782 1,343 304,253
5,392 680,005 1,245 407 687,049
10,875 752,911 1,960 540 766,286
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. 9% - BEREMR (Z)
As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s buildings MR20156F 12 A31H AEBE KM@
and structures with a net carrying amount of HK$177,592,000 F {8 /177,592,000 7T (2014 4F :
(2014: HK$199,766,000) were pledged to banks to secure 199,766,0007870) U E TIEF R EE
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 24). YIE IR TIRTT - EARASER T

RITRAE APER (Mi5E24) ©

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FAfttivEE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Carrying amount at 1 January "1 A1 BrEREE 41,600 43,658

Amortised during the year — note 9 FEEE —HE9 (976) (995)

Exchange realignment bE (1,833) (1,063)

Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A 31 BRIEREE 38,791 41,600

Current portion included in prepayments, st ATERF ~ 124 REAM

deposits and other receivables R FIB R R BN EE (1,005) (1,052)

Non-current portion FEMENEL 37,786 40,548
As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s leasehold MR2015F 12 A31H AEEBEKM®@
lands with a net carrying amount of HK$11,603,000 (2014: 3 (B &11,603,000/%8 7T (20144 ¢
HK$12,442,000) were pledged to banks to secure banking 12,442,000/870) WA THELHE
facilities granted to the Group (note 24). IR FIRIT - {ERRANE BT HRTT

B RER (FiE24) o
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17.

Notes to Financial Statements

GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at the

beginning and end of the year NEREFHE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 9.3% (2014: 9.2%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an inflation rate of 5% (2014: 5%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the handling of
liquid chemicals. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwiill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price are the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.

FH R ERAKA

BT ERAR MY RE

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

17. W@

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TAT
1,210 1,210
AR ERH

FREBEHEE B RRENL
BONSERTEREENRSEES
iz - HeJ el BEERNESRERE
AMEE 2 FEREHNE - MRLRE
FERI R SR E IR B 2 IR
BEEmME - BensBAER 2
IR 59.3% (20144 : 9.2%) » M
mEAFHENEeREFER%
(20145 : 5%) Z iBAREHER] o

AEREELABUARRBCEMERR
FREENEREERRDIIARKE -
NTHATERBBAERSRER
RIAETERERENR 2 SBEETER

=1 .
2% S

FHRFE—FERZITRERBEBA - X
RREEAREELEN 2 BFER

LA
a0
ZoN

o

BIRFE-RREENRBEEHEK
ARBABROEESAEFEES
BIRTERIERIEEN -
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Notes to Financial Statements
g E

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. MEEATMNKRSE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Share of net assets B EEFE 15,567 19,389
Particulars of the Group’s associate as at 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A 31 BAREB 2 BE QD
is as follows: AIMEEBAAT ¢

Percentage of

Particulars Place of equity interest
of issued registration attributable to
shares held and business the Group Principal
Name BEERT EAIYN FEBRERL activities
£ A ki B BRERDE TEEK
Tianjin Tianlong Registered PRC/ 65 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemicals capital of Mainland and handling of
Storage and US$1,950,000 China liquid chemicals
Transportation Co., Ltd. ** A E AR BB RN REEER
REREREBICTHE 1,950,000 7T ISR kR
BRAR
# Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has e RIBFABERMER  AEEHZE
significant influence but not unilateral control over this BEEATE BES—ITHE-
entity.
2 The statutory financial statements are not issued by Ernst & * ARV BERRILIEABTBL KD

Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

Ao

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

Bih 7% FfT X 22 K B PR 4B 4% EL Aok &
REITE -

The interest in the associate is indirectly held by the Company. REE RN 2B A EER



18.

19.

Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of the
Group’s associate:

B RS R R BT RE

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

18. REELATMIRE (&)

TRAAREE B AT 2 A

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Share of associate’s loss for the year JE(RERE N R FEREE (3,037) (529)
Share of associate’s other FE(RE & A A
comprehensive loss HEM2HEEE (785) (506)
Share of the associate’s total FE(GEE & A A
comprehensive loss FHEERTE (3,822) (1,035)
Aggregate carrying value of the REEREE AR
Group’s investment in an associate 1$& 7 IR E 15,567 19,389
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELENRE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Share of net assets EIEEEFRE 26,204 27,467
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Notes to Financial Statements
g E

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

19.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows:

19. REELEMERE ()

AEEEE

EROFBWT

Particulars Percentage of
of issued Place of Bk

shares held registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name BEERT and business interest power  sharing activities
£ S dEMREBEH  EEEER S EHEN TERK
Ningbo Ningxiang Paid-up capital of PRC/ 60 60 60 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemicals RMB?7,350,000 Mainland and handling of
Terminal Co., Ltd.#* BRBRAARE China liquid chemicals
BREARIFE 7,350,000 7 i,/ REE(BRIER
BEERAT R B REE
Ningbo Xinxiang Paid-up capital of PRC/ 60 60 60 Terminal storage
Liquid Chemical RMB4,200,000 Mainland and handling of
Store Co., Ltd.* BRBRAARE China liquid chemicals
BRAAREL 4,200,000 e,/ BB B@mAEH
TEREEERAA R B REE

The interests in the joint ventures are indirectly held by the
Company.

i Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint
control of these entities with other joint venture partners.

* The statutory financial statements are not issued by Ernst &

Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

AARREERE A EhXEAOMER

# RIBEMEIZAA - AEEEEM
BECRBHAREZENZEER -

* EEMBRRLIFRBRBLKES
b =5 7% FfT 2k 22 K B R 48 4% ELAh K B
NATIEE -



Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REELEMRE (E)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TEHBAEHEENIAZTE 5%
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not EZEHFBMBEER -

individually material:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Share of the joint ventures’ profit EhE &R
for the year FRHEM 5,850 6,495
Share of the joint ventures’ EhEERE
other comprehensive loss Hiv2MAEE (947) 617)
Share of the joint ventures’ JEIGE &%
total comprehensive income Z2HEALREE 4,903 5,878
Aggregate carrying amount of AEBREERE
the Group’s investments & 2 @REE
in the joint ventures 26,204 27,467
20. ACCOUNT AND BILL RECEIVABLES 20. EWIERRFRE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FAT
Account receivables FEUBR R 38,271 32,022
Bill receivables VST 4,669 -
42,940 32,022
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly BRETERE—MATRLEMNTON  AEE
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in NEFAZZEEZHAH - ERBE—K
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 A30K - FERFHBGKEIR AR E
days, extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The REGOK - NEBEBERIESERE
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding BEREKEN =RhEEESTHEZ
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by BHAGER - EWIRRBESFIE - J&E
senior management. Account receivables are non-interest- WEIERR R BB REEEL A E48
bearing. The carrying amounts of account and bill receivables Ao

approximate their fair values.

113
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Notes to Financial Statements
g E

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

20. ACCOUNT AND BILL RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. BEWIEFRREE(Z)
An ageing analysis of the account receivables at the end of the REEER - RIBZEZHHAMAERL
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FEWBR KBRS AATAA T -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FAT
Current to 30 days BNHEAZ= 30K 32,949 28,333
31 to 60 days 31 260X 1,337 3,475
61 to 90 days 61 290K 2,982 204
Over 90 days 90 KA = 1,003 10
38,271 32,022
An ageing analysis of the account receivables that are not RARVERLE A FE UL BR SR BR R 5 4T 20
considered to be impaired is as follows: T
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired BEAR B HR I ARUE 32,949 31,808
Within 90 days past due #HA 90 KA 4,319 204
Over 90 days past due #HI90 A E 1,003 10
38,271 32,022
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to BE R 8 B 7N R R (B A FE W AR 3 T B Al
customers for which there was no recent history of default. BN A R LR R B o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to EEAERBENEREREB LR
independent customers that have a good track record with FP(HEASEHEERITHNTERDE)
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the 1B - ERIBELR - ARRESER
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment B BAREEERUESEAEHRE
is necessary in respect of the balances as there has not been RS BRI AR 8 E - B AR
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still EMERERHE -

considered fully recoverable.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. AR HZERHEMEBIRIE
RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Prepayments TEf 5K 7,458 2,977
Deposits and other receivables g N E b e IE 7,549 675
15,007 3,652
Portion classified as current assets (note) D BARBEENZD (M) (10,787) (3,652)
Portion classified as non-current assets S RIERBEENI S 4,220 =
Note: BeE
As at 31 December 2015, included in deposits and other R20156 12 A31 B » st AlR& R E A fE
receivables was a deposit of HK$6,061,000 for acquisition of 50% W FRTE B B ULE — R 2 B150% B% HE Ay 1%
equity interest in a company. Subsequent to year end, an equity £6,061,000 7T © RERE + 5] IRk
purchase agreement was entered into. Further details are set out BRI - E—PH BRI RERM T
in note 36 to the financial statements. 36 °
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. LR EBEERRBEITARRE - Eit4s
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to BT EENERMEERSILEHER
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history LSRR S REWKIEAR - ZFR
of default. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other T REMBBHENREERE AR
receivables approximate their fair values. BRE -
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e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances R RIRITHEE
Time deposits with original maturity
Y BiTF X

of less than three months
Time deposits with original maturity

of more than three months JEBRTF 5K
Cash and cash equivalents on the Bk &=
statement of financial position HeMREEEY

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$165,270,000 (2014: HK$286,184,000). The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair
values.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and six months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

22. Be&RB&EEY

REZHETBEBE=(EH

RERHBE BB =R

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
52,423 110,718
158,802 192,968
- 18,864
211,225 322,550

MABERR » UARETARE])
SHMERIRS KIRT TAERRE 165,270,00075
7T (2014 4F : 286,184,000 7T ) ° IR &
MR EEYNRAMERLIQ R EME
g °

ARBIEEERLBKEMER - R
i - ARE B A CONE E IR 5B
M(HEE - EERNEEEBRE) &
KB EE R ER A ETTINE XD
RIT - BARBELBRAEBEE -

FRI|FITHRESRE BIRITEZH X
HF B S R BREUR S, o A2 HIE IR
HARR Y — KRB} ME A AN S B 10 BN B
R&FKME - W AEEREHE S
TFRMRESHE o RITHBRFEFR
MAEENTTR - EERFHORT -
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Notes to Financial Statements

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables H AT skIE
Accruals FEETE R

As at 31 December 2015, included in other payables was a
payable of HK$1,193,300 (2014: HK$1,249,300) due to the
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Management Committee
which is the parent company of Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Company Limited, a non-controlling interest of the
Group. The amount represents the remaining outstanding
balance due to acquiring a prepaid land lease. Upon certain
conditions being fulfiled by the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Management Committee, such as land levelling, the amount
will be settled.

As at 31 December 2015, included in other payables was a
dividend payable of HK$3,458,000 (2014: HK$22,590,000)
due to Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Company Limited,
a non-controlling interest of the Group. The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other than the balances mentioned above, other payables
are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one
month. The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
approximate their fair values.

BT ERAR MY RE

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

23. HtiEMREARENRA

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR
11,438 26,415
13,063 45,120
24,501 71,635

R2015F 12 A31H - H ft fE 1 &
BEANBREENERIEEIXEEEIE
ZE®(RAKBEIFERAFTMRE
BTXRARARNETAR) KA
1,193,300/8 7T (20144F : 1,249,300 75
To) o ZEEMEEREEFEN T
HEMENOREETIBRE - 5@
FEBTEREEZESERS TIK
(L) & ZHRBEETE
H o

2015512 A31 8 » EfbEMNKRIAER
BIEEMAEEIFERATM RS
TEREA R AR E 3,458,000%8
TT(20144F : 22,590,000787T) ° %X
BRERE 2B RIRERMERE -

B EX Pl A& ERIN - BN SRR R
TETERFHEFALS—EA - Hit
ENFANME ERNERmEREER
RAEHEE -
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B RS R AR BT AE

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

24, INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

Effective
interest

rate (%)
BRI (%)

Current

REE D

Secured Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate (“HIBOR"),
plus 2%

B FRRITRFFEA X
(BEABRITRFERS
FI% 1) +2%

Unsecured 4% per annum

EAEA FME 4%

Non-current
ERBT D
Secured

BHEMA

Analysed into:

HIBOR, plus 2%
BARITREFEHE+2%

DT

24. FBBITER

Maturity
FIEAE

2016

(2014: 2015)
2016 4F

(2014 % : 20154F)

(2014: 2015)
(20144 : 20154F)

2017
(2014: 2016 to 2017)
2017 4

(2014 % : 2016 4F
E20174)

Bank loans repayable:
Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive

IRITEREE -
167X
EoF
EIES5F (RIFEHEMT)
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2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
28,333 28,333
- 62,465
28,333 90,798
14,167 42,500
14,167 42,500
42,500 133,298
28,333 90,798
14,167 28,333
- 14,167
42,500 133,298




Notes to Financial Statements

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group’s bank loans were secured by:

(i) corporate guarantees granted by the Company;

(i) fixed charges over certain buildings and structures
with a net carrying amount of HK$177,592,000 as at
31 December 2015 (2014: HK$199,766,000) (note
15); and

(i) fixed charges over certain leasehold lands with a
net carrying amount of HK$11,603,000 as at 31
December 2015 (2014: HK$12,442,000) (note 16).

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

BT ERAR MY RE

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

24. BHBITER(Z)

Bt -

REBORITERTIALTIRE 1E
R

) AREHERHADRER

(i) 20155128318 ¥ Bk
M % 18 5177,592,0007 7T
(2014 4 : 199,766,000 %8
L) METEFREEYHE
EHIR (FIE15) 0 &

(i)  M20155E12 4311 - HERME
JF{E 211,603,000/ 7T (2014
112,442,000 7T ) &
FHE £ 10 A Bl A (T
16) °

R RTEROEEER
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e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

25. DEFERRED TAX 25, EFERIF
Movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as RAFRRLERBEEZEHFEN
follows: BN
Withholding
taxes
AN
HK$ 000
FAET
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1 H 5,899
Deferred tax charged to the statement BFEANERRNBRAEERIE 312
of profit or loss during the year — note 12 4,898
Withholding tax paid on repatriation PMBAR] - AECEREENT]
of earnings from subsidiaries, B HH 28 7| i se A~ ey TR A0
joint ventures and associates (5,499)
Exchange realignment HE 5, S8 B (215)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 72014912 A31 H % 201541 A1 H 5,083
Deferred tax charged to the statement BFANERKNBRAEERIE —[5E12
of profit or loss during the year — note 12 6,391
Withholding tax paid on repatriation RMBAR - BECERBENT]
of earnings from subsidiaries, P H 28 1 if 2 <P A9 TR AR
joint ventures and associate (6,415)
Exchange realignment bE N (191)
At 31 December 2015 M2015%F 12 A31 H 4,868

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR



25.

Notes to Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5% to 10%
withholding tax rate is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by the subsidiary, an associate and joint ventures
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$78,300,000 (2014: HK$60,613,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and in the opinion of the directors, it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

25.

BT RARMYRE

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

BIERE (2)

BB BB EMRETOE - MR EAM
BRI EVINE R ERIFEIMER B E IR
BB 5% = 10% B FEF © %
FIEB2008F1 A1 HREREM @ IWiE
AR 2007F12 A31 HZ BEXNA
F o i B A BLIR NS & 2B P8 )
EREREF B G ERRE - AR
BRRTENB RN - AEEmE -
HAMERLS% - ALt - NEBEER
RABRHE B AR - BEA
ARG ERERR2008F 1 A1 H#E
FRiS AR AR SEMTEINF o

AEBERREBERBZMEARER
78,300,000/ 7T (20144 : 60,613,000
AB7T) - AERARNREELER 2
NAHBRERTOGEN - ARNELE
ERBEENMNBARCERE R
[ - AL S B R RERE T IR
BE HEFERR/TAARSELRE
AR AR SR TRE 1R
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e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

26.

27.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
4,000,000,000 (2014: 4,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

ERE
4,000,000,000 %

ERTRAR
1,109,662,000 i%

Issued and fully paid:
1,109,662,000 (2014: 1,109,662,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
There were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
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26.

27.

(2014 £ : 4,000,000,000 f% )
EFREE0.108 T2 Timik

(20144 : 1,109,662,000 %)
FREEO0.10/ETTZ B

B
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$000
TEx TAT
400,000 400,000
110,966 110,966

MR Rt ®

REBP 2011 F 5 A 23 B ERAREEAT 1
FTEl ([t B ERBEE
BREE (BEAR R SEAEMME
RNAIZIEE  TRABS SRS
EE(BRIEFNTES KRB IR
Bx) B #WE - #HER B
PRAREE) &t HEARNEE KL
RIEH 2 BRL - REARRQ T RN RIE
Bai8BsEE - REZE2015F K
201412 A1 HIEFEA » AR F]
BERRERETEIRD - 1768
§ B8 AR A o 7A2015F 12 318 -
REARME ST B T AR AT T 2 B AR
(20145 : &) -
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28. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein

are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents the difference between
the consideration and the book value of the share of the
net assets acquired in respect of the acquisition of non-
controlling interests.

Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary established in the PRC
is required to transfer a certain percentage of its statutory
annual profit after tax (after offsetting any prior year’s
losses), if any, to the reserve funds until the balance
of the funds reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund may
be used to offset against accumulated losses of the PRC
subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is subject to the
approval of the board of directors of the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations in the PRC which are
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 3.

28. fi#fi

BT ERAR MY RE

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

AEENEERANEBHSES IR
GAMMEDE -

(ii)

(iii)

=N

BAREEZEABKEIE
Pergas (B BB PR UREE B
EFHEREE FNERE -

REFBEEANBRER K
SEN BB AR RIA
BETBEDLBRERNZ (K
HEMBEFEERR) AEF
Bar () ZEFEEe B
EESREREINZTEEMENR
H150% ° & T A BT BIER
FRENEE TIRHIT - XE R
NS A AR ET B E A
AN REREE - BRSEAL
TEMBARESSNIE -

BB R B R
EXNDHEEERREPEE
50 15 8RR 05 EE £ B9 P A HMEE

ZR - WIREMEES PRl e & st
BURERIE °
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29.
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@ As at 31 December 2015, the Group recorded other
payables and accruals in relation to additions of
property, plant and equipment of HK$1,175,000 (2014:
HK$28,317,000). The additions have had no cash
flow impact on the Group during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

(o) During the year ended 31 December 2014,
HK$10,618,000 in relation to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment was transferred from prepayments
to property, plant and equipment.

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 30.
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

NJDC

Percentage of equity interest held by RN S AT RE D
non-controlling interests in NJDC BREB DL

Profit for the year allocated to FRDE T IEERER
non-controlling interests 2 i )

Dividends paid to non-controlling XA TR FEERR
interests of NJDC il ¥\

Accumulated balances of FEPEARE R TR B EA
non-controlling interests at 2 BIEHERR

the reporting dates
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ReReRERME

FEFRERS

(@)

MR2015F 128318 A& &
BEERAANDE BER
4 ) fth FE S RRTE R B AT
£ 11,175,000 7T (2014 4 :
28,317,000 7T) © sZANIIE AR
& B R E £ 2015F %2014 F
12 A31 BIEFE AW R S

=8/

EXE -
HZE2014F12 A31HIFFE -
BHEEME  BMEREZED

FXTE10,618,000/8 7T JhEE B B
Y - BE N RE TN -

HAEXFERERZBI AN
BaR

AT #EINERERERFER R

AEBHBARFS -
FAREEA
2015 2014
9.99% 11.39%
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
10,977 12,277
34,353 -
51,874 66,045




Notes to Financial Statements

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 30.

31.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed
are before any inter-company eliminations:

Revenue A
Other revenue HABYA
Total expenses B
Profit for the year FR A

Total comprehensive income for the year ~— FRZEW A 4258

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EMBNVEE
Current liabilities MEAE
Non-current liabilities EMBAE
Net cash flows from operating activities KRBTSR RE T
Net cash flows used in investing activities ~ & /EBFTABR S R=F5
Net cash flows used in financing BB EBFTRAES
activities mEFER
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Re RIS EEYHIN,
cash equivalents CRA) F58
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31.

(@) Aslessor

The Group leases certain portion of its office building
under an operating lease arrangement, with the lease
negotiated for a term of five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows:

Within one year 1FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 82 =54 (BEERME)

BT RARMYRE

31 December 2015
201512 H31 H

BREXFERERZES AN
BT (&)

TRHBLAKE A AN AR
Z - RESE DA FEAAANY
B

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET T

269,104 261,574

8,006 2,378

(170,628) (155,071)

106,481 108,881

82,046 92,335

111,308 157,138

737,738 815,350

286,568 327,651

33,412 59,966

151,032 163,814

(14,901) (61,987)

(171,698) (55,598)

(35,567) 46,229
EEHERE

(@) fERHBEA

AEERBEEHELHHEE
HERFEME Ty ZHO
BERSFH -

RIBEMR » NEBEF AT
HEEHENRRREHES R
BRI N5 S HARI AR P U -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TAT
497 886

165 1,181

662 2,067
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 31.
(b) Aslessees (b)

The Group leases certain portion of its office premises
and pipe racks under operating lease arrangements.
The leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 15
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year 16K
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ $£2ZE5F (BHEEEMFE)
After five years S5 F

32. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) Commitments (a)

In addition to the operating lease arrangements detailed
in note 31 above, the Group had the following capital
expenditure commitments at the end of the reporting
period:

BETA - BREHE
BT RZEY

Contracted, but not provided for:
Buildings and structures

(b) Contingent liabilities (b)

At the end of the respective reporting period, the Group
did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR

EEHARYE(E)

EREBAA
AEERBRLEHEELRHFEE

EETHRAMERER - %F
HMAOFHBER1E15F o

RBEHR > NEER AR

HEERENRARERER
AN T F IS -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
12,560 14,643
50,240 52,697
15,176 29,038
77,976 96,278

32. EiEREARAR

i

B XCHsE 31 Frafi R el E
THEZON MIBEBR &%
BB T & RS HRE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
3,017 8,140
HARRE

REBREMR  AEBELEME
MEBRHAREE -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

Terminal service expenses: AR L )
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park AR EETERAA
Public Services Company Ltd. EXEREEAF
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park AR tETIXE
Management Committee ERBEEZES
Rental and auxiliary expenses: HERMBZ T
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park AR EBETHEE
Company Limited BRAR]
(“Nanjing CIPC”) (E=®CIPC))
Dragon Crown Investments AL TIEBRBER AT
Limited (“DC Investments”) (TEMML TR )
Notes:

(i) Terminal service expenses were charged in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between
the Group and the related companies which were the
group companies of a non-controlling shareholder of
NJDC.

(i) Rental and auxiliary expenses were charged in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder of NJDC
for the use of pipe racks.

(i) Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the
related company for the use of an office premise. DC
Investments is a company in which Mr. Ng Wai Man
and Mr. Chong Yat Chin has 98% and 2% interest in
it, respectively.

BT ERAR MY RE

31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

33. MABALXS

(a)

Notes

Bt

(i

(i)

Bk B 75 ¥R 2R E At b 05 P w9
R REBRFR L LR
BEALETATRS :

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

1,791 1,950

2,411 571

13,945 14,223

1,494 1,494

Bt s -

[0} WERE BB EAREE

(i)

S B BgE /3 R AR B 15 5E MY {6 K
SR NI ) NIV TR
IR RETHOEER
al e

MHE 8 YR B AN &
%) £ 7 B AN RO FR I IR AR
{58 PR B 2R AR B 15 RE MY R R
XA e

MEHTIRBEAEEEZ
EENGIER IS RN E i
B E MG - AL
THERARRBEREE KR
BRENE D D HIEH 8%
K 2% Wz 2 NF] ©

Annual Report 2015 FE#H &

127



128

Notes to Financial Statements
g B

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@) (continued)

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (i)
and (jii) above also constituted connected transactions or
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Commitments with related parties

() A subsidiary of the Group, as the lessee, entered
into a three-year office lease agreement ended
on 31 December 2015 with DC Investments. As
at 31 December 2015, the total operating lease
commitment that falls due within one year was Nil
(2014: HK$1,494,000).

(i) A subsidiary of the Group entered into certain
agreements with Nanjing CIPC for use of pipe
racks and auxiliary services for the periods up to
and ending on 14 March 2022 and on 6 January
2023, respectively. As at 31 December 2015, the
total operating lease commitments in relation to
pipe racks and auxiliary services falling due within
one year, in the second to fifth years, and beyond
the fifth year were approximately HK$12,560,000
(2014: HK$13,149,000), HK$50,240,000 (2014:
HK$52,597,000) and HK$15,176,000 (2014:
HK$29,038,000), respectively.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEEIERER AR

33. RAMALER(Z)

(a)

(b)

(&)

EAER () ~ (i) R (i) 167 BE RO BB
ATRZIEKER 5 iE
K AR RIS 14AE N 4ERE
ERG o

6 BE B A L 1F 2

U

(i

AEBE 2z —HWB A RIE
AAGE A BB TR
513 8 E 20154 12 A 31
HitAH=F 22 =R
& & o R2015F12 A
318 - —FAFIEZRK
EHEAERZT (20144 ¢
1,494,000787T) °

AEBEZ B ARHE
ERCIPCR A AIREE
20223 A 14 B (BHE%
H)X%2023%F186H(B1E
ZH)LHRAFERAERR
B BB SR M RT S T pak o
201512318 A
BB e M B R e
AN F2FE5F K 5F
LRI A T E R
2 Bl 49 512,560,000 7%
7L (2014 4F : 13,149,000
7 7T )~ 50,240,000 JT
(20144 : 52,597,000
¥ 78 ) &% 15,176,000 7% JT
(2014 4 : 29,038,000 7
TT) °
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. BBALXS (&)
(c) Other transaction with related parties (c) EERBEALTHEMRS
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group NE ZE20155 12 A31 B IFF
acquired an additional 1.4% equity interest in NJDC B AREBEBEIFERARE R
from its non-controlling shareholder at a consideration of B RN 2 BN 4% AR AE -
HK$9,685,000 with reference to a valuation performed RAE A9,685,000/87T * Jh&=E
by an independent professional valuer. BN B ERPTE T 2 1A -
(d) Details of the outstanding balances with related parties (d BEEBEBRATHOREESRF
are included in note 23 to the financial statements. BEN I TSI KM FE 23 o
() Compensation of key management personnel of () ATEBEHNETEEIEASEN
the Group
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F&T
Short term employee benefits 2R B2 A 9,323 9,351
Post-employment benefits RIKEER 72 66
Total compensation paid BNEEER
to key management personnel AN B WH BAazE 9,395 9,417
34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. BENESHEMTIR
The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments REREER  SHEeMTANKRD
as at the end of the respective reporting period are as follows: BEHEHIIAT
Financial assets - loans and receivables SRIEE - BERREKRRIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FH&T
Account and bill receivables FEM IR N =A% 42,940 32,022
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AFERN T ~ 26 R E MR
deposits and other receivables (note 21) FIEMEREE (HiE21) 7,549 675
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 211,225 322,550
261,714 355,247
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34.

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank loans FTERITER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank loans. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as account and bill receivables, financial assets
included in deposits and other receivables, and other payables
and accruals, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The majority of the bank borrowings bear
interest at rates with reference to HIBOR. The Group mitigates
the risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest rates
and reviewing its banking facilities and borrowings regularly.
The Group has not used any interest rate swap to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR
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35.

BEENBSHERTIR
(&

1k

TEEE—RBHEREIR

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$000
FTEx TAT

24,501
42,500

71,635
133,298

67,001 204,833

MERBEEHRRBE

AEENTECRTABRERRE LA
SEEMANGTEBRITER - %%F2
BTEATEZANSAEEZELEES
BEe  ARBRAERMZHSMEE
REE fIMERERREEELEDN
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RIEFTEM °

AEESBTAMMSRNEZRRS
MERER - FEERBRERBE SR
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MR - R SBRAOENT -

AEEHHNHSHNEREHERER
EARE BT B R SHFHEB R
EEM KREDRITEENESTIZR
BRARITRAXFEMNRFE - AEH
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35. MERREEEERBE(Z)

POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the HIBOR, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

31 December 2015 2015412 A 31 H
HIBOR BERITRIZER BF|E
31 December 2014 2014912 A 31 H
HIBOR BERITRIZER B F|E
Credit risk

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
advanced payments are generally required for new customers.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Since the Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is normally no requirement for
collateral.

Rz (&)

TRETEEMBRAEZAEERT
EARRTARFKENRAIEEFLA
SBEBRBANE M CEBEF BIRTT
EENTE) NERE -

Change in

profit

Change in before tax
basis points BRFL AT
HE®E R B
HK$’000

FA&T

50 305

50 413

ERER

AEETEMERA REBRIFNE
=R RERS - ARBBRRAENE
P—RRANTAMK 1o - UK
RS ZBIRERR - AEENE
REBRILNEX - HRAKEEER
ERAURGEERENE=TRHR
% At — R BAFE RN -
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, account and bill receivables
and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. As at 31 December 2015, there was a
concentration of credit risk as approximately 37.7% (2014:
45.2%) of the Group’s account receivables were due from one
debtor.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from account receivables, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 20 and 21, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and
financial assets (for example, account receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35. MERBEEAERBE (Z)

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B E DR ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at REENRSHMERARENES LRI
the end of the respective reporting period, based on the NHHeRBENIIEERINT

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2015
3to

On Lessthan 12 months 1to5
demand 3 months 3{EAZE years Total
RER LRIEA 1218 A 1E54F st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Interest-bearing FTBIRITER
bank loans - 234 28,828 14,296 43,358
Other payables E A RIA K
and accruals FEETER 4,651 19,850 - - 24,501
4,651 20,084 28,828 14,296 67,859
2014
3to
On Lessthan 12 months 1to5
demand 3 months 3 fEAZ years Total
®REsk LRIEAR 12 & A 1254 5T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FAT FH&T FAT FAT FAT
Interest-bearing FFERITER
bank loans - 63,212 29,299 43,358 135,869
Other payables E e EIE K
and accruals FEETE A 23,839 47,696 - - 71,535

23,839 110,908 29,299

43,358 207,404
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors the capital ratio on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio, which is calculated as the net debt
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company plus
net debt. Net debt includes other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank loans, less cash and cash equivalents.
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at the end of the
respective reporting period was as follows:

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans TEIRITER

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
IREIFER

Net cash

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company
Capital and net debt EARBEFE

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio
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35.

H A e R R EFT & A

o R MIREEHEY

ZAN/NCIE 2SN Y S

BEEERHBEARLR

MERBEEEERRYE (EZ)

BEXEE

AEBEAEENTEARA/RER
SEBRNFBELEER  WHESR
REEARLE KM BEETER
REAREMRTAREE -

REEEEHEARRBE A RIBLEAN
LR B K AR B A ) R B e R L
AT - BERFIGAREARARE K
SE A HARARRRNORE - [K
RIREBANNEITHIA °

AEBZAERERAEE AR L RET
BARL R - gttt Ry & EFER
UARRRER ARG #E MR EFHE
ZMEE - AEFRBEEBENR
/N fER B RLA NG BRITER - R
RekReEEY RERSHK
BEEEABREARLRMT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
24,501 71,535
42,500 133,298
(211,225) (322,550)
(144,224) (117,717)
910,554 938,984
766,330 821,267
N/A N/A
FiEH NiE A
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37.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 January 2016, the Company entered into an equity
purchase agreement with Sime Darby Overseas (HK) Limited
(“SDOHK”) and Weifang Sime Darby Port Co. Ltd. (“WSDP”),
independent third parties, to acquire a 50% equity interest in
Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd., a company
established and registered in the People’s Republic of China,
(the “Target Company”) at a total cash consideration of
HK$73,020,000 (RMB60,850,000). The Target Company is
principally engaged in the construction, management and
operation of Weifang Liquid Terminal at Weifang Port in
Mainland China. The transaction was not completed as at the
approval date of these financial statements. Further details of
the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 28 January 2016.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due
to the implementation of the amendments to the Listing Rules
relating to the disclosure of financial information with reference
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current year, the presentation and disclosure of certain items
and balances in the financial statements have been revised
to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation and disclosures.

36.

37.
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31 December 2015
2015F12 A 31 H

REMESR

201641 A28 H » AR A EE L
BE=H REEZEFINEB)BRAD
AI(TREZRBINES) D) REHR
EXBARAB (AR EES D
I RRIERE B g - B RE
ERICDGEBAR AR (—HERFE
ARZEMBE K AaE) (8
BERARD0%EE  BRERER
73,020,000 % 7t ( A & % 60,850,000
gL) o BIEA A EERNF B A AL
EER - BEREESESRLRE
UH o RABIISRERIERR KB
RIERK o RP ZHE—HFFE - AR
ARIBHEIA2016451 A28 HH A o

4 44

WA TSR R M R 2.2 — S Rt -
ARAFEEELTRANEHETEE
FHEE 2 &3] (REBB RN (F
622%F)) ' BsHRERETIERE R
th 25| RIRFRAREH B ST - A
EBFHRE At BETHERESEEE
BENOE  UBBAFEZEYEE

= o

Annual Report 2015 FE#H &

135



Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2015
20154 12 A 31 H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. EAFIMBERAE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RABRRERRZ I EARRARZE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BEY T
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NN E g 250,980 245,438
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERR - EZek
other receivables H b e W ZIE 455,957 313,931
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 95,783 114,914
Total current assets MBEERE 551,740 428,845
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HEM I sE R ER &R 87,182 23,635
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 464,558 405,210
Net assets BEFE 715,538 650,648
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 110,966 110,966
Reserves (note) it (BsE) 604,572 539,682
Total equity R ABEE 715,538 650,648
Ng Wai Man Ting Yian Ann
RER S
Director Director
EEa EEa
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39.

Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2015
2015F 12 H31 H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. FAFMBRAE(Z)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: BEE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NAREBEENT :
Share Retained
premium profits Total
B 1= E HRERR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHIT FHT FHET
At 1 January 2014 ®2014F1A1H 431,509 104,652 536,161
Total comprehensive FREE
income for the year N - 67,881 67,881
Final 2013 dividends paid B12013 F AR E - (42,167) (42,167)
Interim 2014 dividends 2014 FHHARR B - (22,193) (22,193)
At 31 December 2014 MW2014F12 A31 H
and 1 January 2015 % 201591 A1H 431,509 108,173* 539,682
Total comprehensive FREE
income for the year LN - 129,250 129,250
Final 2014 dividends paid B1J2014 F R E - (42,167) (42,167)
Interim 2015 dividends 2015 FHHIRR & - (22,193) (22,193)
At 31 December 2015 R2015412 A31 H 431,509 173,063 604,572
# Retained profits have been adjusted for the proposed # REBHERBEAFELYHEZR

final 2014 dividend in accordance with the current year’s
presentation, which is described in note 3 to the financial

statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2016.

2014 FAREANR B F AR - il
B IS RFMIFES ©

39. HLEMBHE

EESCN2016F3 A24 Bi@BNE
T BE B TSR K o
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFMBHME

REVENUE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

Total equity

The summary does not form a part of the audited financial statements.

WA

BRBLAT R

PR

F R

AT AR -
ZA/NEIE 2SN
FEIER R s

aE
FRBEE
MBEE
BERE

&
inEA=YE

FERBAE
BIERER

&

mh
S

g

m
|
m

/

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHT FA&T FA&T THET
269,104 261,574 270,020 257,770 240,675
111,105 114,120 144,085 139,931 108,557
(23,010) (20,910) (25,778) (25,991) (5,319)
88,095 93,210 118,307 113,940 103,238
77,118 80,933 104,234 99,100 90,076
10,977 12,277 14,073 14,840 13,162
88,095 93,210 118,307 113,940 103,238
At 31 December
M12H831H

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
FHET T FATT FA&T AT
772,036 854,900 856,271 727,329 641,018
267,825 361,465 372,751 314,685 451,493
1,039,861 1,216,365 1,229,022 1,042,014 1,092,511
58,398 163,753 76,760 77,344 180,100
19,035 47,583 140,767 6,061 17,598
77,433 211,336 217,527 83,405 197,698
962,428 1,005,029 1,011,495 958,609 894,813
962,428 1,005,029 1,011,495 958,609 894,813

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEFIEBEIERAER AR
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. LUO Shijie
Mr. ZHU Wujun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Shijie

Mr. ZHU Wujun

Mr. NG Wai Man

Mr. TING Yian Ann

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAU Lai Chi (Appointed on 24 February 2016)
Ms. LEE Mei Yi (Appointed on 19 August 2015

and resigned on 24 February 2016)

Mr. CHONG Man Kit (Resigned on 19 August 2015)

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Corporate Information
NEEH

PITESE
REREE(ZE)
[RE RS (TTEAREL)
HASEE
R=EXE

BIUFRITESE
2IHIRELE
SRR L
RRERE

FRERE
BIHREE(EE)
Bt st A
RRERE

FHEAS
RIHREE(LE)
SRittiE A
RRELE
REREE
RE =Tt

REERE
BIHREE (£/E)
Bt A
RRESRE
REREE
REREE

sEAx
HBEEEE
=L

NFRE

BB LA (R 201692 A 24 HEZR(T)

TEFELZLT(R2015F8 A19AEERT
KA 2016 52 A 24 BEHE)

A (PR 201568 A 19 HEHT)
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Corporate Information
NEIEHR

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Financial PR (HK) Limited

5/F, BOC Group Life Assurance Tower,
134-136 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
No. 101, Hao-Jia-Ba, Xinli Village

County of Yudai

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park

Liuhe District, Nanjing City

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.dragoncrown.com

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EEZERERA T

RRERFEBMN

A (FE)ERAA]
BB T 134-136 5% -
FIREBASRRAESE

FREIEERE
BB

FEEE 1R
TRESHAKNE
18183 =%
hEEEERIDE
PET 8R A
ERmAER
AR LETERER
< AR

LRI ARZRR 101 57

FREERINEFEILRE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

FERiHBFELESE

BEBFERERAR
BB

EEANER 18398
BN 22 1

M EE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands
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